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French Journalist arrested
On 10th December, International Day of Human Rights the editor received a call from a French Journalist Comiti Paul Edward  from the Kothi Bagh Police station seeking legal help as he was detained by the police. Paul a French national have visited Kashmir on business visa and police have booked him under the Foreigners Registration (Amendment) Act 2004 alleging that the accused under the garb of business type visa had participated in a recorded political events. The allegation was that the foreign national has called Mir vise Omar Farooq (Chairman APPHC/M) at his Nageen residence, and has participated in musical events organized by Abshar Production Welfare Trust at SKICC and had done videography of the event. On 9th of December the Foreigner participated and filmed the programme on pallet victims and had also met Farooq Dar of Berwah who had been tied by the army vehicle during parliamentary Bi-election. It was first time a foreign Journalist was arrested and booked under any criminal offence within J&K state  with 5 years punishment. One Councilor Mr. Flip from French Embassy at New Delhi was sent to Srinagar for his legal help as it is the practice of their embassy.  Though the bail which was not contested by the police in the court was granted but his passport, digital camera and accessories (I-Phone) were seized by the police that means till his release of the passport he could not leave the country. The frustrated journalist and his councilor were desperately contacting their French govt. who was in touch with the Indian Foreign Ministry. The arrest of the French journalist was reported internationally and different journalistic organization in France and even Indian Journalistic Organization like International Federation of Journalist (IFJ), Indian Journalist Union (IJU) and Committee for the protection of Journalist had condemned the arrest of the French Journalist. It was worrisome for the journalist because he could not leave the country without the permission of the court that too when Christmas was nearer. The completion of the trial which could have taken months he could have only travelled outside J&K that too with the permission of the court even if the FIR/ charge-sheet would have been challenge before the High Court of J&K. Finally the police filed the charge-sheet before the Sub/Mobile Magistrate Srinagar in which the police sought the charges be made against him.  Opposing the charges defense counsel pleaded that the accused’s company had already submitted a proposal to the Indian Embassy at France and the EPD (External Publicity Division) of India for production of a documentary film on Kashmir titled as “War on the Roof of World” and he had come here on a pre-filming visits. It is therefore he was granted the business visa  and not the journalist visa, he had no other covert and overt business except his upcoming documentary on Kashmir and the condition of his business visa was not stipulated though there were conditions that he could not visit the restricted areas which was not the case of the police and in the business visa does not contain any such condition that he should not meet any particular class or category of people or will not attend meeting and musical concerts. The accused was researching for his documentary and visiting and meeting people relevant for him in the documentary which he was contemplating to commission on his next visit.  In different case laws on the identical issues courts have given the findings like in case of a Swiss foreigner who have attended political meetings and booked under the section 14-B of the Act where placed before the court for consideration. The High Courts in identical cases have quashed these FIR’s and the charge-sheet filed against the foreigners on the conditions of the visa has not been stipulated. The court rightly discharged the accused observing that there are no sufficient grounds to proceed against the accused.
Much to the relief of the Paul who was terribly disturbed shocked and agitated. He had stated to the media that the condition of the Kashmir is worst then the North Korea. He was defiant but he was prevailed upon to restrain himself. The govt. of India is reluctant to issue journalistic visa to foreigners in past people working on Kashmir have been banned like Maryan Lucus a Netherlands peace activist , David Barsamian an Armenian –American Radio Broadcaster, Richard Sparrow an American Professor,  Christine Amnesty Activist, Aillen Bacalso AFAD journalistic activist, Partricia Gossmin who have worked in Kashmir, researcher of then Asia watch (then Human rights watch), Thomas van der Molen (researcher). People are barred from reporting in Kashmir. It is therefore the activists are managing to enter Kashmir on Tourist visa. 
The BBC channel four prepared the Torture Trial clandestinely and after its release in London in 2011 it was shock for the government. The arrest of Paul has caused concerned to lot of academician from different western educational institution visiting Kashmir for research. The govt. has succeeded in sending the message to activists highlighting the issues of Kashmir due to the militarization to the international community. Though the Paul has returned to France it is very unlikely he could visit again to valley but the challenge is how to meet the objectives without these people visiting Kashmir.       


One more killing near encounter site
 Bullet hit woman inside her house

The Informative Missive 	1	December 2017

The killing of twenty-five-year, Beauty Jan was another addition to the list of people killed near encounter sites in last couple of years. In 2016 nine civilians and in 2017 fourteen people were killed near encounter sites. On December 19, Beauty Jan become a fresh victim of encounter site killing when armed forces, engaged in an encounter with militants at Batmaran village in Shopian, fired bullets in different directions to ward off the protesters.  Some of the bullets were fired towards the house of Beauty Jan. One of the bullets fired hit Beauty’s abdomen and she died on the spot.  SHRC sought report from Deputy Commissioner and police regarding Beauty’s killing. As per the research of The Informative Missive most of the people killed near encounter sites were not part of the protests.[image: ]
Photo shared by her family 

	During the The Informative Missive researchers visit to Batmaran village in Shopian district in south Kashmir, the area where the encounter took place on December 18 and 19, one could easily see piles of rubbles of burnt houses and cow sheds. People put the number of burnt house at four and cow sheds at three. The house of Abdul Rashid Bhat, Beauty’s father, had three bullet holes quite visible from a distance. If one moves his head around the houses around Rasheed’s house were also bullet holes. A disproportionate use of force was quite visible near the encounter site. The bullet which hit Beauty came through a closed window pane. Beauty was offering water to her ailing uncle in the only the story of her father’s house when a bullet punctured her body. Beauty was living with her parents from last one year after some disagreement with her husband Manzoor Ahmad Mir. The killing of Beauty snatched mother’s lap of her only daughter Azra, ten-months-old.“She was offering water to me while holding her child with her chest. Suddenly, she fell on the floor, throwing her baby away. Before I could understand anything I saw blood oozing out of her belly”

	The researchers after moving around in the area finally reached to the house of Abdul Rasheed Bhat, 70, a farmer.  
On 18 December, 2017, at around 5 pm, house of Mohammad Yaqoob Bhat of Batmarran village was first cordoned off by the army of 44 Rashtriya Rifles and Central Reserved Police Force (CRPF) 14 BN on a tip off presence of two militants there. There was massive armed forces presence laying multiple tyre cordon around the area to block militant escape. The cordon and search operation (CASO) is a commonplace in south Kashmir from last two years.  The militants trapped there were a local and a Pakistani. Before the armed forces make any advances, the trapped militants opened fire on them. Soon the encounter started people mostly youth from surrounding villages gathered around the encounter site and started pelting stone at the forces, a new tread in Kashmir. At around 10, in the evening, one of the militants was confirmed to be killed while the other kept the forces engaged in the gunfight for whole night. 
Talking to The Informative Missive Beauty’s father Abdul Rashid Bhat said, “after the encounter started everyone was in a state of panic what will happen. Boys were pelting stones, the situation was very tense. Nobody in the area has slept that night. The encounter continued till next day.”
Rashid further stated, “On December 19, at around 11:00 am, one of the troopers deployed there opened fire towards my house. The forces were pelted with stones from different directions. Some of the boys were also gathered behind my house hurling stone towards the forces.  The bullets fired by the solider towards my house killed my daughter on the spot.”  
Beauty was offering water to her ailing uncle while holding her daughter in her lap when the bullet hit her. Ghulam Mohammad Bhat, Beauty uncle, stated, “She was offering water to me while holding her child with her chest. Suddenly, she fell on the floor, throwing her baby away. Before I could understand anything I saw blood oozing out of her belly. The floor was drenched by her blood in no time. Actually she had died then and there and taking him to the hospital was only a formality.” 
Beauty’s father questioned the soldiers’ intent. He alleged that the stone pelting was not intense which can forces the soldier to open fire indiscriminately without caring about the population living around the encounter site. According to him, there were no warning shots but direct firing. Rashid house was less the 100 meters from the house where militants were trapped. 
 	The forces deployed there blocked Beauty’s family from taking her to the hospital. This enraged her family and her younger sister raised an alarm, which attracted neighbour’s attention and with their help she was taken to the hospital. Her mother Saja and brother Parvez Ahmad along with some villagers took her to the District Hospital Pulwama. In hospital she was declared brought dead by the doctors.  
While taking her dead body back, the forces again stopped and didn’t allow her relatives to take the body home. Then a local youth, a driver, courageously braving the armed forces threat took her to home for last rites. 
“See first they (forces) kill people and then stop their relatives from taking their bodies for last rites,” the dejected father stated.  
 In armed forces action more than fifty people were injured during the clashes.  The house in which the militants were hiding was razed to the ground with the gun powder, besides that four neighbouring houses and three cow sheds were burnt down as well.  
Police has filed FIR with police station Keller.  The family of the victim has visited the office of the Superintendent of Police (SP) Shopian.  The SP called the district magistrate and referred the family there. The father of the victim has filed the case in district magistrate’s office for compensation in favour of the daughter of the victim.  But Beauty’s father is facing hiccups in getting the report from the police due to the dispute of the couple. The SHO Keller wants no objection certificate from Beauty’s husband in order to give the police report to Beauty’s father. As the police are not giving the report there has been no progress in the compensation case. 
On December 27, State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) has sought a detailed report from Deputy Commissioner and Senior Superintendent of Police (SSP) Shopian in connection with killing of Beauty.

Sumo driver killed in army firing at Kupwara

December 16: A driver of a Tata Sumo vehicle was killed when fired at by army soldiers outside his home in Thandipora village in Kralpora area of district Kupwara on later December 16 night. According to locals of the area, Sumo driver Asif Iqbal Bhat, son of Mohammad Iqbal Bhat, was at home in Thandipora Kralpora when someone from the nearby Batpora village called his mobile number and said that a patient had to be taken to hospital. Asif, they said, had just stepped out of his home with a torch and as soon as he started the engine of his Sumo vehicle, an army team that had laid an ambush in the area fired at him. The district magistrate (DM) of Kupwara said he has ordered a magisterial inquiry into the killing. The SHRC sought report from DC and SSP Kupwara about the incident. [image: ]
Source – internet  

Neighbours said they heard gunshots after Asif started his vehicle. When the family of Asif and other neighbours came out, and rushed towards the vehicle, they saw Asif in a pool of blood and some army men standing around the vehicle. When the army men saw people coming towards them, they fled from the spot by jumping into their vehicles.
Mohammad Iqbal Bhat, a forest guard and the father of the slain driver, confirmed that Asif was taking his vehicle to ferry a patient to hospital. He said that the army men who had laid an ambush in the area fired upon Asif and killed him on the spot.
Gulam Mohammad, uncle of the slain driver, informed that Asif parked his vehicle some yards away from his home. He said that Asif received a call from someone in Batpora village to ferry a patient, and soon after he started his Sumo vehicle, army men fired at him without any warning.
People living in nearby houses said that they and their families rushed out when they heard gunshots and found Asif in a pool of blood inside his Sumo vehicle. They said they took Asif to the nearby sub-district hospital in Kralpora, where doctors referred him to Srinagar. He succumbed to his injuries near Yunso village on the Kupwara-Sopore road.
The neighbours said there was no gunfight or militant hiding in the area, and Asif was not killed in any cross-firing.
Soon after the incident, a large number of people, including women and children, held protests and blamed the army for killing the driver. They said that the army men fired without any warning or identification. They said that since a long time the army had been telling civilians to use a torch or some other light while travelling in the night, and yet they fired at Asif even though he was using a torch.
The government authorities suspended all internet services in Kupwara district immediately after the incident which remained suspended even on December 17.
On December 17 morning, people from several villages, including Thandipora, Batpora, Kralpora and others, went to Batpora village where they received the body of Asif, which was brought in an ambulance. The people carried the body through the village and blocked the Kupwara-Chokibal road for some time, where clashes broke out with government forces. People hurled stones and rocks at the police, which fired dozens of tear smoke shells and kept fighting the people for hours. Several civilians and some policemen, including SSP Kupwara Shamshar Hussain, sustained injuries during the clashes. Local sources said that the SSP was hit by a stone on his head and had to undergo four stitches to stem the blood.
At about 1pm in the afternoon, people buried the body in the local graveyard at Thandipora. The gathered people shouted anti-India, anti-army, pro-Pakistan, pro-Azadi, and pro-Islam slogans during the funeral.
A complete shutdown was observed during the day in Thandipora, Kralpora, Kupwara and other nearby areas, where all shops and business centres remained shut. Public transport also went off the roads.
The army in a statement said that Asif was killed in cross-firing. Srinagar-based army spokesperson Lt Col Rajash Kalia said that based on information of presence of some militants in Thindpura village, the army placed ambushes to maintain surveillance over the area on the night of 16/17 December. At about 10:55pm, the ambush party observed suspicious movement of three persons near a local nallah in Thindpura village. The individuals were challenged by troops, but they opened fire towards the army ambush party, which was retaliated. In the crossfire, a Sumo driver Asif Iqbal Bhat, son of Mohammad Iqbal Bhat of Thindpura, was killed due to gunshot wound.Police – Army versions contradictory

· Asif Iqbal Bhat, was killed after being mistaken as a militant: Police 

· The Sumo driver was asked to stop but he didn’t, and was then shot by them: Army 

The police, on their part, said they have registered a case at police station Kralpora and started investigation. A police officer, who wished that he not be named, said that police have registered a case but did not say under what Section/s.
There are several army units in Kupwara and though people said that it was soldiers from the 21 Raj Rifles who killed Asif, police sources could not confirm the name of the army unit.
Thandipora is a village on Kupwara-Chokibal road about four kilometres from Kralpora town. It is about 20 kilometres from district headquarters Kupwara.
The district magistrate (DM) of Kupwara said he has ordered a magisterial inquiry into the killing. Talking to Kashmir Reader, Khalid Jahangir, who is also the Kupwara DC (Deputy Commissioner), said, “I have ordered a magisterial inquiry and the additional district magistrate Kupwara, Mohammad Abdullah Malik, has been appointed as inquiry officer. The team will submit their report within 21 days. People of the area have been asked to cooperate with the inquiry team.”
Army contradicts police statement 
On Dec 17, the police and the army have made contradictory claims over the killing of a civilian Tata Sumo driver outside his home in Thandipora village of Kupwara. Soon after the incident happened late Dec,ber 16 night, police claimed that the victim, Asif Iqbal Bhat, was killed after being mistaken as a militant. Later, the army put out a different version: that Asif was killed in an exchange of gunfire with militants.
Senior Superintendent of Police (SSP) Kupwara, Shamsheer Hussain, told local media that Asif’s killing was a case of “mistaken identity”.
“As per the army authority’s version, soldiers had laid an ambush in the area. The Sumo driver was asked to stop but he didn’t, and was then shot by them. This is very unfortunate and regrettable. We will hold an inquiry into the matter and whosoever is guilty will be punished,” Hussein was quoted as saying on Sunday.
Later the police came out with an official statement, in which they completely ruled out that any cross-firing took place between militants and the army in the area. The police stated that Asif was “seriously injured after being hit by a bullet at Thandipora in the jurisdiction of Police Station Kralpora”.
“He was shifted to Sub District Hospital Kralpora for treatment, from where he was referred to Srinagar hospital for further treatment where he succumbed to his injuries,” the police statement said, adding that a case has been registered to investigate the killing.
The army in its statement contradicted the police, asserting that Asif was killed in cross-firing between militants and army soldiers. “Based on information of presence of terrorists in Thindpura village, army placed ambushes to maintain surveillance over the area on night 16/17 December. At around 2255h (11:55 pm), ambush party observed suspicious movement of three persons near nallah in Thindpura village. The individuals were challenged by troops, however, they did not respond,” the statement signed by Srinagar-based army spokesperson Col Rajesh Kalia stated.
“Thereafter, militants opened fire towards army ambush party which was retaliated to,” Kalia stated. “In the crossfire, one person, later identified as Asif Iqbal Bhat, a resident of Thindpura, was killed due to gunshot wound.”
The army spokesperson added: “It is learnt that he was a Sumo taxi driver”.
Family members of Asif and neighbours said both the versions were false. They said that Asif was killed when he stepped out of home and started his vehicle, to go to nearby Batpora village to ferry a patient to hospital, when army soldiers who had laid an ambush nearby fired at him without warning or identification.
On December 20, the State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) has sought a report from deputy commissioner and SSP Kupwara about the 28-year-old driver who was killed in alleged army firing on December 19.

Aimed bullet in head kills a young woman

Dec 11: Protests erupted in Younsu village of Handwara area of north Kashmir’s Kupwara district on Monday against the killing of a woman in the gunfight that also left three militants dead.
Reports said that protesters placed the body of the woman, identified as Misra Bano, on a road to protest the killing.
DIG North Kashmir V K Birdi said that the woman was killed in the cross-fire after she tried to escape from the house where the militants were trapped.
She is crying even in the lap of her father most of the times. Maryam, 7-month-old girl does not even know that her mother was snatched from her over a week ago.
Her mother Maysara Bano (22) was killed when government forces allegedly fired bullets at her near her house in Unisoo village of Kupwara district.
A dejected Ishfaq Ahmad, Maryam’s father, says: “I wish the government forces had killed me instead of Maryam’s mother. My baby needs her mother.”
 “On that rainy night, the government forces brought us out and asked us to stay in the yard of house. While the exchange of firing with militants was going on intermittently, I had put my hand on Mysara’s shoulders and the baby rested in her mother’s lap. Suddenly a soldier among dozens engaged in that gunfight shot her in head".
“Hell broke loose on me. As it was dark, I could see a flash of flame generated by the gunshot. She fell on the ground and the baby too. She was dead in just a few seconds. However I somehow lifted the baby and later held Mysara in my lap with blood oozing from her head till the gunfight ended in the wee hours,” he added. 
The family struggling to come to terms with the tragedy does not want compensation. “The only compensation I want is that the guilty soldier who shot dead the mother of seven-month old baby must be hanged or sentenced to life. No amount of solace or cash compensation can bring back or equate the affection of a mother for her little baby,” Ishfaq said.

12 years-ago five Surankote youth disappeared in Srinagar
The Informative Missive 	8 	December 2017

On June 9, 2005, five young men including a minor boy from Sang Liana, Surankote, Poonch, Jammu came to Srinagar to work as construction labourers.  All of them came with the hope to make a good earning. In Srinagar, they rented an accommodation at Khayam chowk. They chose Khayam chowk as most of the labourers lives in an around there in rented accommodation. The place is closer to Dalgate area, uptown Srinagar, which is a central place where from the labourers were being hired by people for labour work.    [image: ][image: ][image: ][image: ][image: ]Majeed       Javaid      Muhtaq    Mushtaq       Rafi


On June 13, 2005, like hundreds of labourers, when they five were waiting in Dalgate to get hired, two unknown persons approached them for labour services. They were boarded in two auto-rickshaws and were taken towards Harwan area of Srinagar. It was then they were last seen by their colleagues. Interestingly, on the fourth day of their disappearance, one of the disappeared called on his father probably to tell him about their situation. However, the boy was unable to get through his father. This was perhaps the first case in the history of enforced disappearance in Kashmir that any disappeared person, during his detention, had managed to contact his family. 
The families of the five have enough leads to base their claim that army has involved in disappearing them. There were instances which connects army with this case. The families claimed that police was very close to solve the case, however, after the intervention of army and then SSP Ashiq Bukhari the investigation was brought to sudden end. Nevertheless, in December 2017, a hope has been ignited by the court by ordering constitution of SIT to probe the five disappearances. The APDP has also taken up the matter as part of its relentless campaign against enforced disappearances in J&K.   
The disappeared were identified as 1. Mohammad Javaid, 22, son of Mohammad Sadiq. 2. Mohammad Rafi, 15, son of Mohammad Aslam. 3. Abdul Majeed, 24, son of Fahad Hussain, - married having one son 11 yrs– Jameela, 4. Mohammad Mushtaq, 22, son of Mohammad Bashir (married), 1 daughter – Naseem a Akthar and 5. Mohammad Mustaq, 19, son of Said Mohammad all resident of Sang Liana, Surankote, Poonch. They all were related to each other.
Pertinent to mention here the human rights situation of Surankote was least reported. The Surankote massacre August 1999 was one of the human rights violations incidents which got media attention only when a case was filed before the court.  
Travelling from far of Surankote area of Poonch district in Jammu, this month the families approached the APDP to take up the matter after they failed to locate their children. Surankote township is located some 27 kilometers to the south-east of Poonch city and 221 kilometers from winter capital Jammu. The valley comprises 43 villages. The total projected population of the valley is 127,000 which includes Paharis, Gujjars, Bakerwals and a visible Kashmiri speaking minority who locally form a part of the Pahari community. Twenty-four villages are located on the western slopes of main Pir Panchal range while 19 villages are found on the slopes of Rattan Panchal range. Surankote is around 150 km from Srinagar district.
The relatives of the five made a joint detailed statement before The Informative Missive. The most part of the statement was made by Mohammad Aslam father of Mohammad Rafi’s, youngest among the five, who is well-versed with the case details as he followed the case from the beginning. 
All the five for the first time came to Srinagar to earn their livelihood. They know only the labour work. They rented an accommodation at Khayam Chowk, Srinagar, the locality where most of the labourers live around.   
On June 13, 2005, when they were standing at Dalgate chowk, where the labourers wait in the morning to get hired. Two persons approached them seeking their services in Kupwara district of north Kashmir. The duo paid Rs. 1000-/- in advance to them which they gave to one Mehboob Khan of Bufliyaz, Poonch. Mehboob was well-known to them. All the five were boarded in two auto-rickshaws and were taken in d irection of Harwan, Srinagar. · The families claimed that police was very close to solve the case, however, after the intervention of army and then SSP Ashiq Bukhari the investigation was brought to sudden end.

· Surprisingly, Mohammad Javiad, on the fourth day of his disappearance, called on his father Mohammad Sadiq’s contact number, who was then working in Saudi Arabia.


In the evening, when they five failed to return back to their rented accommodation, Zaffar Ahmad another labourer from Sang Liana, Surankote asked Mehboob Khan to check why they don’t returned back as it was getting late. Mehboob Khan asked Zaffar to call on the phone number given to him by the unknown duo. Zaffar dialled the cell number and the person from other side in a harsh tone told him that he was a police constable and the boys were not with him. Again after a while Zaffar ringed the same number, this time he was told the person he was talking to was a Peer Baba (a saint). And the third time when he called on the same cell number he was threatened by the person saying he would be destroyed if he calls him again. 
Next day, Zaffar and Mehboob went to nearby Nehru Park police station to file a missing report. The then SDPO Aziz Khan called on the phone number and the same was told to him as earlier told to Zaffar by the person on the other side and the phone was dropped. When the SDPO again called on the number the phone was turned off.  The SDPO made a report and forwarded it to Ram Munshi Bagh police station under whose jurisdiction the area falls. 
Meanwhile, the families of the disappeared person were informed. On June 15 one family member of the five disappeared persons reached Srinagar. The relatives went to the Nehru Park police station where they were told that a report was forwarded to Ram Munshi Bagh police station. In Ram Munshi Bagh, the police asked few questions from Mehboob and Zaffar about the duo with whom the five went. Then a policeman called on the phone number but the phone was switched off. Then the police took two of the relatives Mohammad Aslam father of Mohammad Rafi, and Mohammad Sabir uncle of Abdul Majeed and Mohammad Javaid, to Kupwara. In Kupwara, after verifying the phone number, which was issued on the name of one Mohammad Sidiq Malik of Kupwara. Sidiq was brought to Ram Munshi Bagh for questioning. During the questioning he told the police that he has given his SIM to his relative Abdul Qayoom. 
Surprisingly, Mohammad Javiad, on the fourth day of his disappearance, called on his father Mohammad Sadiq’s contact number, who was then working in Saudi Arabia. However, the father was unable to respond to his call. Then Javaid called on his father’s cousin Muneer Hussain, also working in gulf, telling him to get him through his father. Then the father called back on the number from where Javaid was calling him. The person on the other side told him that it was an STD booth and a boy has come here to make a call. Then the father requested the STD owner to tell him his STD location, which was in Khanabal area of Anantnag in south Kashmir. Sadiq requested him to look for his son and to tell him that his father was calling back. When the STD owner went out there were no traces of Javaid. Pertinently, the STD booth was located just near an army camp. 
Then Mohammad Sadiq called his brother Mohammad Sabir telling him about the phone call. Sabir informed the police at Ram Munshi Bagh. The police went to Khanabal. The police checked the phone details of the STD booth. The phone records showed a call was made to Saudi Arabia and Rs. 14 charged. On police enquiry, the STD owner told the police that he saw three phone numbers were written over on Javaid’s hand and after calling from his STD booth he left without saying anything.  
Thereafter, Abdul Qayoom Baba was arrested by the police. Qayoom was recruited in Jack Rifle and was posted at Khanabal. He was in police custody for eight days. In presence of relatives of disappeared persons, army men including two officers in two vehicles approached Ram Munshi Bagh police station for Qayoom’s release. However, then SHO Tahir refused to release Qayoom telling the army that an investigation was under process. Tahir was confident and assured the relatives that he will not rest till he finds the whereabouts of the five disappeared persons.  He was sincerely conducting the investigation till then SSP Ashiq Bukhari intervened. 
Suddenly, Qayoom was released. When the families went to police asking about the reasons of Qayoom release, they were told that he was handed over to SSP Ashiq Bukhari. Thereafter, police lost its interest in the case. Whenever the family visited the police to know the status of the case they were told the “investigation is under process”. 
Among the five, two were married and have children. Abdul Majeed has twelve-year-old son and his wife Jameela has a strong hope of his return. Mohammad Mushtaq has a daughter and his wife  Naseema Akthar is convinced that sometime he will know about her husband. 
The families have approached police high ups, politicians to ensure smooth investigation into the disappearance of the five. Only assures were given to them and nothing concrete was done in the case.
Different times SSPs at Srinagar were approached, DCs of Srinagar and Poonch were requested to help in the case, the then Home Minister Taj Mohi-ud-din was approached who called on police urging it to exert efforts to locate the boys. In Jammu then deputy chief minister Magnat Ram Sharma was also approached but all futile.
A case is going on in SHRC where the families have recorded their statements before the Commission. 
A petition was filed in the High Court and the Court in December 2017 directed the constitution of a Special Investigation Team to probe the disappearances. The family are hopeful that something will come out sooner or later about the whereabouts of the disappeared men.  

Two JK Bank guards killed in Shopian attack

Dec 11: Two private security guards at Jammu and Kashmir Bank were killed in a suspected militant attack in Shopian’s Kralcheck village.
Unidentified gunmen attacked a Scorpio bank vehicle (JK01M-4631) at the village, leaving two guards of Perfect Placement –a private security firm-seriously injured. They were removed to District Hospital Pulwama, where doctors declared them dead.
Medical Superintendent Pulwama Dr Abdul Rasheed parra told Kashmir Reader that the injured were declared dead by doctors in the hospital.
The deceased have been identified as Mushtaq Ahmad, 30, of Anantnag, and Tariq Ahmad, 25, of Tumlehal, Pulwama.
While giving details of the incident, Station House Officer, Keller police station, Sharad told media that the JK Bank officials had to deliver cash at Keller tehsil but the police was not aware about it. “They (the bank officials) didn’t inform us or Pulwama police before leaving for delivering cash. After their return from Keller, an ambush was laid by militants in Poju-Kralcheck area. Two of the bank guards were seriously injured who later succumbed in Pulwama hospital,” he said.
He said that the guards were not carrying weapons. “They (the guards) had placed their weapons at Shajimarag bank before they went to Keller,” he said. A case has been registered and investigation is on, he said.
Senior Superintendent of Police, Shopian, S A Dinkar told Kashmir Reader that “militants at tacked the Scorpio vehicle of Jammu and Kashmir Bank in which two private banks guards were killed”. He added that there was no cash in the vehicle.
Meanwhile, J&K Bank Chairman and CEO Parvez Ahmed also expressed shock over the killing.
He said, “It is very painful news and we at J&K Bank are shocked over the killings of security personnel namely Mushtaq Ahmad and Tariq Ahmad by the unidentified gunmen while guarding the bank’s cash delivery vehicle. I express my heartfelt condolences and all our sympathies are with the bereaved families. I also wish speedy recovery to the three injured officials of the bank including security guard.”
“Let me add here that these innocent guards were there only to protect the people’s money and such gruesome incidents create hardships for the general public and hinder us from serving the people of these areas well”, he said.
Meanwhile, the Chairman assured the bereaved families of appropriate support from the bank. “Human life is invaluable and its loss can in no way be compensated. However, the affected families need to be sufficiently supported financially and emotionally as they have lost bread earners.”

The Informative Missive 	31 	December 2017

SSP Budgam directed to appear in person before SHRC
Tanveer’s killing 

On December 07, the State Human Rights Commission issued orders for personal appearance of SSP Budgam before it on the next date of hearing in a case involving the killing of Tanveer Ahmad Wani, a Beerwah youth. Tanveer was killed by armed forces on July 21, 2017.
Chairperson SHRC, (R) Justice Bilal Nazki while hearing the case, observed, “SSP Budgam has not filed report in terms of order dated 27th Oct, 2017. The CD (case diary) in this case has also not been furnished by the SSP.”
The commission directed: “The order shall be complied with by the next date of hearing. SSP Budgam shall remain present on that day.” 	
On July 21, Tanveer Ahmad, a tailor, was killed by the army of 53 RR while their vehicles were passing through Beerwah marked. The soldier opened fired when some playing boys exploded a tetra juice pack. 
The details collected by The Informative Missive reveals that the passing of the soldiers from Beerwah market coincided with bang triggered by the playing kids of a juice cartridge. As per the family of the deceased and the eyewitnesses, the soldiers without verifying the nature of the bang opene fired and also beat some people.
Tanveer’s, family said, he was fired when he was on his way to the local Jamia Masjid for offering Friday prayers. In the firing another boy suffered injuries. 
According to Tanveer’s uncle Mohammad Sanaullah Wani, an eyewitness to the incident, the youth was killed in cold blood. He claimed he had seen soldier firing at the boy from close range describing their intent to kill Tanveer.
Later, the soldiers made an attempt to project Tanveer as a militant. 
 “When the people at the graveyard were performing Taveer’s last rites a contingent of army and CRPF entered in. They tried to place a weapon on his boy and want to take photographs to project him a militant. The armed forces move was strongly resisted by the people. On people’s reaching the forces fired tears smoke shells to disband the mourners,” stated Tanveer’s family while detailing the graveyard incident to The Informative Missive.  
Police filed an FIR no. 74/2017 at police station Beerwah against the army of 53 RR.  The army’s statement was rubbished by the family 
Army and police are not on same page while detailing the incident. 
According to the army, Tanveer was killed and Ibrahim Wani sustained injuries when they attempted to snatch weapons from the forces. Contradicting this claim, the police said the army opened fire when they mistook a fire cracker for a grenade.

Bullet fired by troops pierced Ashraf’s liver and spinal cord

Dec 1: Muhammad Ashraf Mir (26), a resident of Senzen-Shahoora village of Pulwama is immobile since he was hit with a bullet in his chest on October 14. The bullet was fired on him during a gunfight when two Lashkar-e-Toiba militants and a civilian were killed in an encounter at Litter -village of Pulwama.
Mir said he was not part of any protest but went there to participate in the funeral prayers of two slain militants. “I even don’t know anything about stone-pelting but unfortunately troopers fired a bullet on me. One of the civilians was killed and I was left half dead,” he said.
The lone bullet has pierced his chest causing damage to liver and spinal cord. “Since then I am restricted to a bed and not able to move even an inch. The bullet has done more than 90 percent damage to my spinal cord,” he said.
Amir Hamid, Ashraf’s nephew told media that they spent more than one lakh rupees on three surgeries and medicines of Ashraf but there was no improvement. “During three surgeries, doctors removed a portion of his liver which was damaged by the bullet but didn’t succeed in helping the backbone injury,” he said.
Mir’s 70-year-old mother Zaiba Begum said that her injured son was the lone bread-winner for the family of 11 members. “He was a motorcycle mechanic before working in a brick-kiln. Now he can’t do any of the jobs. My elder son has also been injured in a motorcycle accident and he is not able to do any laborious work,” she said.
Zaiba’s husband has passed away a decade ago. She was planning Mir’s marriage little knowing that the destiny had something else in store for the family.

4 teens among 10 pellet-hit admitted at SMHS

Dec 19: At least ten youth received injuries due to use of pellet guns while two others were hit by bullets after the encounter between government forces and militants in Shopian area of South Kashmir.
Nineteen year old Farooq Ahmad was among those hit by pellets.
“I was at home and a young boy knocked at our door and said that Farooq has received pellets. When we reached the spot he was not able to see and fell unconscious,” Farooq’s elder brother Mudasir Ahmad said. A 10-th class student, Farooq, who remained admitted at SMHS hospital received pellet injury in the right eye. He was recuperating at the ophthalmology ward of the hospital. “Our father died last year in June and now we have landed in another tragedy,” rued Mudasir.
Two youth from Shopian have also received bullet injury during the clashes. “Imran, 22 of Kallar village has bullet injury on chest and Mohammad Ayoub of Chatragam has wound in the abdomen,” said doctors of the SMHS hospital.
Another young man from a Shopian village, a shopkeeper, was among those who received dozens of pellets. He received pellets in the left eye as the encounter was going. 
Mukhtar Ahmad ‘s wife Zamrooda was at home at Hajan Pulwama with her one-year-old daughter when their neighbors appeared in the courtyard and informed her that her husband has been hit by pellets during clashes. However he was taken to a local hospital by a youth and later shifted to Srinagar.
Waiting outside the trauma theatre of SMHS hospital, Zamrooda said that her husband received at least 30 pellets on the body. “Clashes were triggered after the killing of a woman at Shopian. He received pellets all over the body including face and neck,” said Zamrooda.
An elderly woman from Balpora Shopian, who attended her pellet-hit relative at the hospital, said that there is a camp of forces in the locality. As the encounter raged last evening force personnel “came out and fired indiscriminately on civilians.”
Medical Superintendent SMHS, Saleem Tak, told media that they received twelve youth including two who were hit by bullets. “Ten have pellet injuries including four teenagers and two have bullet injuries. All are undergoing treatment here,” he said.

French journalist arrested on visa ‘violations’ discharged by the court 
Journalist bodies aghast

On December 10, J&K police took into custody a French journalist Comiti Paul Edward from a local park at Srinagar and lodged FIR no. 87/2017 under section 14 (B) Passport Act against him. The journalist’s arrest draw large scale condemnations and concerns from the Indian and international journalist bodies. However, the police claim failed to stand the judicial security as the court finds no violation of via norms by the journalist.  
Advocate Parvez Imroz, President Jammu Kashmir Coalition of Civil Society represented Comiti Paul’s case in the court. · “He was moving around meeting many people from the resistance camp and those injured during the 2016 uprising.”
· “They took away my passport, my handy-cam, some electronic devices including my mobile phone.”
· “These restrictions are attempts to control access to information by denying journalists their legitimate rights.”


Perhaps for the first time a foreign journalist was arrested and booked by J&K Police on charges of violating norms in Kashmir. Kashmir has seen huge influx of journalists from various nations since 1989, the time when armed conflict erupted, to cover various facets of the on-going conflict. 
On December 10, Journalist Comiti Paul Edward was arrested by the police from a local park called Pratap Park Srinagar in Srinagar. The police claimed that he was preparing a documentary on the pellet victims. 
The act, police said, envisages seizure of passport or travel documents from any person against whom a reasonable suspicion exists that he has committed any offense punishable under section 12.
Comiti is a renowned journalist and has received an award in 2009 in Bayeux. He was awarded for reporting on French soldiers being ambushed in Afghanistan.
On December 11, the French embassy formally contacted the Jammu and Kashmir police.
Comiti was produced in a Srinagar court on December 11 where the government prosecutor argued that he had violated visa norms. Comiti was then remanded to police custody till December 16. 
“The French Embassy’s Consular section head met Comiti, who is in police custody,” a police source said. “The French official expressed satisfaction about the journalist’s physical as well as mental condition and said proper legal course was being followed under Indian law.”
Comiti, the source revealed, was under the scanner of government agencies for many days. “He was moving around meeting many people from the resistance camp and those injured during the 2016 uprising,” the source said.
The police official said that Comiti was in valley on a “business visa”, not on a journalist visa. “He is a journalist and was doing his professional work but he is here on business visa, which is a clear violation of the law of land,” the official explained. “He is in police custody and he has sought legal help from a lawyer in Srinagar. He will be released soon.”
Sources said that Comiti was actively covering pro-freedom protests, meeting resistance leaders, and had also filmed those injured by pellets.
Comiti had met pro-freedom leader Mirwaiz Umar Farooq and filmed protesters throwing stones at government forces, said another senior police officer, who declined to be identified as he was not authorised to speak to the media.
On December 12, in a joint statement, IJU President S N Sinha, Secretary General Amar Devulapalli and International Federation of Journalists (IFJ) Vice President Sabina Inderjit, said the Union viewed with concern the arrest and Judicial remand of French Freeland Journalist Paul Comiti in Srinagar.
They said, “it is a common practice among journalists all over the world to take tourist or business visas to visit and report from conflict zones as it is impossible to obtain a journalist visa in such situations.”
“If the authorities on Kashmir think if it is inimical to the interests of the country, they could have deported him from the country instead of sending him to judicial custody which entails long process for the journalist to get bail and go back to his country,” the statement added.
They called on the Union Home Minister Rajnath Singh and Jammu and Kashmir Chief Minister Mehbooba Mufti Sayeed to immediately intervene and take steps to free the French Journalist on bail.
The International Federation of Journalist (IFJ) also expressed concern over arrest of French journalist Paul Comiti. 
"The IFJ expresses serious concerns over the arrest and detention of French journalist Paul Comiti in Kashmir and demands his immediate release. In addition to the blockade of information for local journalists, it is almost impossible for the international media to report on Kashmir due non-issuance of journalist visas. The IFJ believes these restrictions are attempts to control access to information by denying journalists their legitimate rights. The IFJ also urges the Indian government to ensure that it respects international standards of dealing with journalists,” IFJ spokesperson said in a statement.
On December 12, Comiti was released on bail.
On December 26, a trial court in Srinagar discharged the French Journalist Comiti Paul Edward from charges of Visa Violation and directed the authorities to return the seized passport and other accessories including a camera to the journalist.
Special mobile magistrate-13 Finance, Javaid Iqbal while in his judgement said that no sufficient ground has been found on the allegations made out by the prosecution against the journalist. “This court is convinced that the accused has not violated visa norms and thus direction is passed to the concerned authorities to release all the seized items in favour of the accused forthwith,” the judge said.
Parvez Imroz pleaded before the court that the prosecution story had no grounds and Comiti had not done anything which was against law. “He (Comiti) was here on a proper visa and had fulfilled all the formalities,” Imroz pleaded.
The argument on the case was on carried for three days and eventually the court discharged the French journalist from offences of Visa Norms Violation.
 “Once in my career, I was detained for a short time by the Israeli authorities. However, within no time they released me after verifying my credentials and passport. They also returned my equipment. But what happened with me here has made me sad to the core,” Comiti said.
Giving details about his proposed documentary film in Kashmir, the journalist shared with media that he was doing formative research for a documentary film assigned to him by the M6 TV channel of France.
Excerpts of Paul’s media conversation: 
“I was given a business visa by the Indian embassy. I came here to do some preparation before the arrival of the crew and technical staff to shoot the film. It was a preparatory tour. I had with me a small handy-cam. But the day I landed in a local hotel here, the secret police started following me wherever I went. They would often call my friends to know my whereabouts,” Edward told media.
To prepare for the film, Edward said he visited different areas of the state and talked with many military officials. He said he was planning to meet police officials as well.
“It could not mature,” he said of the plans. “On December 10, I was standing at the press enclave with my friends. The video journalists there told me that an activist was about to hold a protest in the nearby (Pratap) park. Being curious, I hopped along with them. I was just standing there. I was not shooting anything. A policeman in civvies came and told my friend that the chief of security wanted to meet me. He asked him to bring me to the security boss’s office. Later, I began having a headache and went back to the hotel. The security officials continuously called my friend, asking him to bring me to their office for a meeting with their boss.”
Later, Edward said, he had no option but to meet the security officer at the Foreigners Registration Office in Srinagar.
“We had a long argument there. They said I was violating visa rules and they issued a probationary order,” he said. “The chief of security called the uniformed police. They arrested me and took me to the police station where I spent three nights and four days in the lock-up.”
Edward said the police also went to his hotel room in Rajbagh and searched his room and his belongings.
“They took away my passport, my handy-cam, some electronic devices including my mobile phone,” he said. “It made me very sad. I was not doing anything illegal. I had a proper business visa. I was not working yet but just preparing for the upcoming film project.”
The journalist said that the French consul had arrived from Delhi to Srinagar and was seeking the release of his passport and other belongings from the authorities.
He said the proposed documentary was about Kashmir and its various facets.
“I wanted to be just a witness in the film. I was not taking any stand. I wanted to talk to everybody, including the police and the army. I would have also talked about people, about the pellet victims. I would have asked the police why they were using pellets against the protesters. In other words, it was a complete Kashmir story,” Edward said.
Edward said he now felt that the authorities were trying to stop the Kashmir story from reaching a wider international audience.
“The international media is stopped from reporting here,” Edward said. “They do not want the happenings in Kashmir to be known internationally. They do not want it to be covered.”
The French journalist said he felt “shocked” for the people of Kashmir. “After this harassment I feel shocked for the people of Kashmir. I feel shocked for the journalists and the people who work here. It is really difficult out here,” he said.

Tale of an empty grave: Two decades ago, an army officer killed a civilian in Brath village and took his body, keeping his grave empty forever

Dec 3: There is an empty grave in Brath village in Sopore which was dug for a man allegedly killed by the army in the village in 1995.
After killing the man, the villagers say, the army took the body and declined to return it.
“The grave which we dug for my husband was lying open for 11 days, but when the army officer declined to return the body, we closed it by burying some clothes in it, as suggested by a local Mufti,” said Sharifa Begum, widow of Nazir Ahmad Mir (then 32), a resident of Mir Mohalla, Brath.
Villagers describe the day as one of the darkest in their memory when an unarmed, civilian of the village was ruthlessly beaten up, dragged, tortured and killed.
It was on the 9th of June, 1995, Sharifa says, that her husband, Nazir Ahmad, was working in his fields when Major A K Chatterjee of the 9 Gorkha Regiment from Seelu camp, an officer who had terrified the village, swooped down on him, dragged him, beat him ruthlessly and took him away.
Sharifa only came to know of the incident in the evening, when Nazir didn’t return from the fields.
“I was worried for his safety because that officer would come to our village a number of times a day. Arresting, beating, harassing and killing was common for him,” Sharifa said, adding that the next morning she along with her mother-in-law lodged a complaint in Police Station Sopore.
“The same day, the army officer came with his men to our village along with my husband and took him to another Mohalla, where my husband’s cousin lived. The officer dragged my husband’s cousin from his house and beat him ruthlessly in front of the village before he released him. We thought he would release my husband too, but instead of releasing him, he and his men shot my husband, killing him on the spot,” Sharifa recounts.
After killing Nazir, Sharifa said, he ordered villagers to put the body in an army vehicle.
“The villagers did what he asked them to because everyone was scared of him; he was like the devil to our village. He took my husband’s dead body with him,” she said.
A devastated Sharifa was left to wait for a last glimpse of his husband’s face, but Major Chatterjee declined to hand over the body.
“He denied that he has taken any body, but when villagers confronted him, he threatened them and told them that he would pay monthly wages to the family but we were to forget the body. I was shocked to hear this,” Sharifa said, breaking down before of her elder son, Irshad, who works as a labourer at a saw mill.
The grave dug for Nazir, she said, remained open for 11 days, after which the family buried a few clothes of Nazir in it.
“I didn’t have the chance to even see my husband’s face and cry on his dead body. Now my kids who were too young then visit their father’s grave in which his clothes are buried. I wish that officer dies the ugliest death if he is alive,” she said.
Irshad has no memory of his father as he was only four years old then.
“I came to know from my mother that my father was killed by an army officer and that his grave lies empty, with only some of his clothes in it as that army officer didn’t give my father’s body back. It makes me angry, but I cannot do anything about it,” Irshad said.
Sharifa’s trials don’t end here. Seven years after the killing, she married her brother-in-law, Nazir’s brother. But four years into the marriage, and after an SRO (compassionate appointment) job landed in his lap, his new husband divorced her and married another woman.
She has two children from her second husband who live with their father and two from Nazir who live with her on a plot of land given to her by her in-laws after her divorce.
Irshad, 26, left studies to support the family after passing his 10th standard, while the younger one is still studying.
“Neither did the police try to find out what happened to my husband’s body nor did the villagers attempt to reopen questions to the horrendous officer as he threatened them with dire consequences. As soon as the SRO job was given to my brother-in-law, my ex-husband, everything ended,” Sharifa said.
An FIR is registered in the Sopore police station under No. 207/95 against Major Chatterjee of the Gorkha regiment (9GR) under sections 307, 342 RPC.
Sharifa keeps a passport-sized photograph of Nazir close to her in a wallet as this is her only remaining keepsake of her husband.
“Hundreds like Nazir have been killed in every nook and corner of Kashmir. Their relatives are also deprived of justice, just like we have been deprived,” Sharifa said.

Army not cooperating in human shield probe: Police

Dec 07: The High Court was informed by State police that army was not cooperating in the investigation of human shield case.
According to the police report, several attempts were made to communicate to Company Commander of 53 Army unit to provide nominal roll of army men involved in human shield case, no response has been received so far.
The police investigation has revealed that Farooq Ahmad Dar, a shawl weaver, was heading towards his home from Gampora village when he was picked up by army men in Utligam village, Beerwah in central Kashmir’s Budgam district during bypolls to Srinagar parliamentary seat on April 9 this year.
“He had gone to attend a condolence meeting at a relative’s house and was accompanied by his neighbour Hilal Ahmad Magray, who is one of the witnesses in the case,” police report states.
It further discloses that Farooq had gone to cast his vote at polling booth at his village. 
According to police, Dar was picked up by army while stone pelting was going on in the area.
“He was taken as a human shield under threat. The army men kept him under wrongful confinement and paraded him in many villages,” the police report states.
Army had tied Farooq with the bonnet of their vehicle and paraded him in over a dozen villages of Beerwah to prevent stone pelting.
“The investigation is going on. The probe will be concluded on merits after receiving reports from District Election Officer Beerwah, Coy Commander 53 RR unit and expert opinion from Forensic Science La Chandigarh with regard to video clip of the victim, which had gone viral,” reads the police report.
It states that 11 witnesses have recorded their statements so far.

Assault of Kashmiri prisoners
Delhi High Court says Tihar assault extremely serious in nature

Dec 02: The Delhi High Court has directed the three-member fact-finding committee led by district judge Brijesh Sethi to submit its report in two weeks, detailing the events and circumstances of the reported assault on 18 inmates at Tihar Jail, New Delhi, on the night of November 21. The report is to be submitted by December 11.
After a preliminary fact-finding committee submitted its report on November 27, acting Chief Justice of the Delhi High Court, C Hari Shankar J, formed another committee led by Sethi which includes Prof Mrinal Satish from the National Law University, Delhi, and Advocate Sumeet Verma, a member of the Delhi HC’s Legal Services Committee.
“Only one of the 18 injured inmates was taken for treatment (after the assault) to Deen Dayal Upadhyay Hospital in the night of November 21,” reads the report issued by the Delhi HC after listening to the fact-finding committee which visited Tihar on November 23, when a petition was filed in the case.
The committee reported that on the night of November 21, a team of Tamil Nadu Special Police (TSP) beat up at least 18 inmates of Tihar Jail’s High Risk wards ‘C’ and ‘F’, in which the inmates sustained severe injuries. After the committee submitted its report to the Delhi HC, the injured were taken to All India Institute of Medical Sciences (AIIMS), New Delhi, in two groups on November 28 and 29 for treatment.
The injured included four Kashmiris, among them Shahid Yousuf, son of Hizbul Mujahideen chief Syed Salahuddin.
The barbarous assault provoked sharp reaction and condemnation in Jammu and Kashmir, led by Chief Minister Mehbooba Mufti who sought action against the accused policemen. Some media reports on Friday said that all the prison staff allegedly involved in the assault have been suspended, but no FIR has been lodged over the incident as yet.
“The first and the foremost issue which needs to be addressed are the nature of injuries and, more importantly, treatment of the injuries suffered by these jail inmates,” reads the Delhi HC order. The court has directed medical examination and treatment of the victims by an independent medical body.
At point number 4 in its order, the Delhi HC has said, “Additionally, the committee, constituted by us on 23rd November 2017, has prima facie observed violation of rules and instruction regarding searches, alarms and the manner in which prisoners are to be treated.”
The November 23 committee has referred to the Delhi Jail Manual to point out how jail authorities are to conduct themselves.
The court has observed that the constitution of the committee two days after the incident of police assault “achieved the purpose” of ensuring that there was no further use of violence against any prisoner, and of providing a prima facie report regarding the incident and preservation of records.
“The matter complained of by the petitioner as well as the reported facts in the report of the committee dated November 27th, 2017 are extremely serious in nature and require a more serious probe before any intervention should be made by this court,” says the order issued by the Delhi HC Chief Justice.
It has asked the medical board to submit its report of the 18 victims before Judge Sethi, who has been asked to submit his report in two weeks.
“The jail authorities shall permit the prisoners to meet the committee in private and enable unhindered and free communication,” the order adds.
The court has directed the jail authorities to preserve and produce before the committee all evidence while the Deen Dayal Upadhyay Hospital has been asked to preserve all medical records of the injured prisoners.
Further, it said, that payments must be made by Tihar Jail to AIIMS so that there is no delay in diagnosis or treatment of the victims. The case has been listed for hearing on December 19.

1993 Sopore massacre: Of 57 civilian killings, CBI confirms identity of 33

Dec 17: Of the 57 civilians killed in the 1993 Sopore massacre by the BSF, Central Bureau of Investigation (CBI) has confirmed the identity of 33 civilians.
A rights activist, Ahsan Untoo in his petition to State Human Rights Commission had produced a list of 51 civilians allegedly killed by the BSF. But the CBI in its verification report submitted to the Commission confirmed the identity of 33 persons killed in the Sopore massacre.
The report of the CBI states, “The list of 51 victims submitted by the complainant was cross checked with the records collected by the CBI during investigation and it was found out that out the 51 persons, names of only 33 figure in the investigation record.”
On January 6, 1993 the BSF set ablaze the main market Sopore and indiscriminately fired upon civilians, allegedly killing 57 people after a militant had, as per reports, snatched a rifle from a BSF trooper.
The security forces, as per reports, had dragged an SRTC bus driver out of the vehicle and pumped bullets into the bodies of the passengers killing 20 of them on spot. 
“After killing the passengers, the BSF personnel sprinkled gun powder, petrol and kerosene on the surrounding building and torched them,” the locals recall.
After the massacre, government set up a one man commission of inquiry on 30 January 1993 comprising of Justice Amarjeet Choudhary. Between 30 January 1993 and 30 April 1994, the commission visited Jammu and Kashmir only once.
The CBI was tasked with the investigation in January 1993 and it took it 20 long years to carry out the investigation.

SHRC this month

The State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) has been busy, as lot of human rights cases are being petitioned by the victims and survivors for its intervention before it. The role of SHRC has been time and again come under severe criticism for being toothless, as most of its recommendations were observed in breach by the government.  However, the SHRC recommendations, observations, reports and enquiries carry value when it comes to recording the human rights cases of Jammu and Kashmir. The role played by the SHRC in investigating the unmarked and nameless and mass graves in Kashmir was significant. This month various reports were submitted to the SHRC by armed forces agencies and police. In one case SHRC has also asserted.   
· Police give contradictory versions about Gaw Kadal massacre, says SHRC report
Dec 03: J&K State Human Rights Commission (SHRC), in its finding into Gaw Kadal massacre of 1990, said Police and State authorities had given contradictory statements on whether curfew had been imposed at the time of forces firing or not.
The investigation wing of SHRC headed by its Superintendent of Police (SP) in his findings regarding the Gaw Kadal massacre of 21 January 1990 has stated, “There are contradictory versions from authorities as to whether curfew/probationary orders had been in imposition or not. The Director General of Police J&K in his report has acknowledged that curfew had been imposed (as is also mentioned in the FIR), but the authorities have failed to identify the magistrate who had ordered the curfew restrictions in Gowkadal area (on that particular day).”
SP SHRC in his finding of the inquiry has further stated that “This is a serious matter, if police version is to be given credence that the mob had turned violent, it is imperative to ask as to who functioned as a magistrate and gave orders to open fire. However, no official order/confirmation despite DGP’s averment could be produced by the concerned to corroborate that curfew had been in place or any credible explanation provided as to why it is not known that who conducted the duties of magistrate on that date, in Gowkadal locality.”
“A case under FIR 3/1990 U/S 147, 188, 153, 307, etc had been lodged in the incident at P/S Kral Khud, but even after an interminable delay of 8 years the case was closed as untraced in the year 1998 and the final report has not been submitted in the courts for judicial determination,” SP SHRC has stated in his finding.
The SP SHRC have also submitted that “As per the report from DC Srinagar an ex-gratia benefit of rupees twenty-five thousand (25,000) each as per the rate applicable at the time of incident as per Govt. order No 145/R/520 523 AC dated 26-07-1990 has been sanctioned and provided in favor of NOKs of only 06 deceased in the incident. It is difficult to fathom as to why others who have met the same macabre fate were discriminated against.”
“There have been serious shortcomings in the investigation of the case. It is particularly shocking that a matter as serious as this could not attract the attention of senior police officers to take the matter to its logical genuine conclusion respecting the spirit of the law and upholding the dignity of human life,” the inquiry report of the finding of SP SHRC reads.
SP SHRC has further stated that “It may be pertinent to mention that timely, effective and professional investigation into the case in the earlier stages would have served the cause of justice.”
“In the end, it may be stated that twenty-six years have passed since the incident occurred which is rather a long period of time. Worthwhile to mention that after the lapse of more than 26 years investigation agencies have failed to fix responsibility on any individual or group of security forces involved in the Gaw Kadal firing incident of 21st January 1990,” reads the finding of SP SHRC.
IGP Kashmir Munir Ahmad Khan in a submitted report has further added that “It is important to underline here that from the report submitted by SP East Srinagar, it becomes palpably clear that on 12th January 1990 at about 11: 15hours, an unruly mob in defiance to curfew orders were chanting anti-nationals slogans, pelted stones upon the army personnel deployed for law and order duties in Gaw Kadal area.”
“Some of the members of unruly mob even attempted to snatch the weapons from the army personnel, which compelled army personnel to open fire in self-defense due to which some people died and others received injuries. Therefore the allegations of human rights violation at the hand of security forces are grossly misconceived and against facts and law,” reads a report submitted by IGP Kashmir.
· Kupwara youth continues to be in army detention: Police
Dec 07: In response to a query by SHRC on missing of a Kupwara youth, police has informed the commission that the youth continues to be in detention of the army.
According to report by SSP Kupwara, “After getting no proper response from the Army men, who had allegedly detained two youth Nasrullah Khan and Manzoor Ahmad Khan, the relatives of the youth raised hue and cry outside the army camp. The army men threw Nasrullah from the rear side of the camp in an injured condition. He was severely tortured”.
Police said on August 31, one Jalal-Din Khan son of Sikandar Khan R/o Diver, Kupwara lodged a complaint with police that he, his nephew Manzoor Ahmad Khan and his sister Parveena went to TrumkhanBehak, where they used to stay during summer. 
“The Army camp of 27 RR located near Behak has made it mandatory for people to make entry about their arrival/departure from the area. Accordingly Manzoor went to the Army post for making entry. When Manzoor did not come out of the camp, his relatives enquired from the army men about his whereabouts but they could not give any satisfactory response,” police stated.
It further stated that relatives of another youth Nasrullah Khan S/o Sharif Ullah Khan R/o Diver also reported at the army camp. “He was also detained by the army men on the same date during day hours.”
According to the police report, Manzoor continues to be in wrongful confinement of army with the ulterior intention to kill him. 
“In fact, both Nasrullah and Manzoor were wrongfully confined in the army camp of 27 RR by troopers led by Major Nishant Kumar with criminal intention,” it stated.
After his release by army men, Nasrullah was admitted to SKIMS, Soura on September 3 and treated by Dr Mohammad Ashraf (HOD) Nephrology. He was discharged from the hospital on September 30.
According to police, its investigation team visited the scene of the crime, prepared a site plan and recorded statements of witnesses. 
“However, till date no clue about whereabouts of Manzoor has been found. The investigation is in progress,” it states.
The commission today directed the DGP to file status report of the investigation of the case.
“A report has been received from DGP J&K that Special Investigation Team (SIT) headed by additional superintendent of police Kupwara has been constituted to conduct the investigation into the matter. Let DGP file a status report of the investigation,” SHRC chairperson, Justice (Retd) Bilal Nazki said.
He also directed SKIMS director to furnish a report on injuries and treatment to Nasrullah by next date of hearing on February 9, 2018.
During the last hearing, SHRC chairman had directed SKIMS director to file a detailed report about the medical history of Nasrullah but he has not responded.
· SHRC chief points out how it’s a ‘toothless tiger’
Dec 09: The state human rights commission chief, justice (retired) Bilal Nazki, himself spoke about how the rights body’s recommendations are turned down by the government at the end of the day.
Speaking at a seminar organised by the SHRC to mark the world human rights day here, Nazki referred to a case where the commission has given its recommendation for compensation of the victim but the state government has not accepted it.
“A 12-year-old was playing in the premises of her house when suddenly a stray bullet comes and hits her back, rendering her paraplegic. The government gives her a compensation of Rs 2500, but we made a recommendation to the government to give her Rs 1 lakh compensation so that she is able to buy a wheelchair. But, the government tells us that we don’t have to give more than Rs 2500 to her,” he said at the event where law minister Abdul Haq Khan, chief secretary BB Vyas, director general of police SP Vaid and other senior officers from the civil and police administration were present.
While Nazki talked about the case of the 21-year-old victim, he skipped making a mention of Farooq Ahmad Dar who was tied to an army jeep as a human shield during the parliamentary bypolls to Srinagar-Budgam seat on April 9 this year. In Dar’s case, the SHRC recommended to the government in July a compensation of Rs 10 lakh to him for “subjecting him to torture and humiliation.” The commission in its verdict also said that “it is medically also established that Dar did not suffer only humiliation publicly but also faced a trauma which resulted in psychiatric stress which may remain with him for rest of his life.”
The government however refused to grant the compensation to Dar. In its reply submitted to the SHRC, the state home department said that its empowered committee has observed that the grounds on which compensation has been recommended by the commission “cannot be accepted due to varied reasons”, including that “no allegation as regards violation of human rights of the applicant has been levelled against the state government or its functionary.”
Nazki, while talking about “lack of credibility among institutions” in J&K at the Sunday’s event, spoke about lack of computers and a proper website for the commission, but again skipped referring to a number of cases of rights violations including victims who have lost their lives due to pellets fired by government forces in 2016, disappearance of a man allegedly in an army camp in Kupwara, cutting of braids of women and girls recently and the recent case of Zahid Manzoor whose vital organs were damaged after forces fired a full cartridge of pellets in his back.
Assuring Nazki government’s “full support” in developing a website for the SHRC and equipping it with computers, the chief secretary BB Vyas appreciated the commission for “working actively.”
“This is a learning session for us. We should arrange meetings with key officers and sensitise them about the human rights of people in every district,” Vyas said, restricting his speech to acknowledging the “good work” of the commission.
In his address, the law minister also praised the commission for its work and said: “This is a learning session for all of us and whatever recommendations would come to us, we will try to implement them.”
· CRPF had identified 15 personnel for Hawal massacre: SHRC investigation
Police closed the case as untraced despite ‘strenuous efforts’
Dec 14: The investigation wing of the State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) has found that the Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) had identified 15 of its officers and personnel for “indiscriminate firing” that killed 35 civilians at Hawal in 1990. The SHRC investigation could not ascertain if any action was taken against these CRPF officers and personnel.
An earlier police report submitted to the SHRC stated that the case had been closed as “untraced”. The police report stated that the CRPF personnel had fired in self-defence during the funeral procession of Mirwaiz Muhammad Farooq on May 21, 1990.
The SHRC’s Police Investigation Wing (PIW) in its report submitted to the SHRC following a petition filed by a local human rights activist, said that CRPF’s Court of Inquiry (COI) headed by a board of officers consisting of MP Singh IGP NES-CRPF, NK Tiwari DIG (P) CRPF, and RK Sharma Commandant 60-BN-CRPF, held 15 CRPF personnel of 69 Battalion responsible for the indiscriminate firing. These included one DSP (deputy superintendent), two SIs (sub-inspectors), three Lance Naiks, and nine constables of CRPF.
 	The PIW could not find out what action was taken, if any, against these officers and personnel and whether any criminal proceedings were conducted against them or not. This was stated in the interim report submitted by the DSP, SHRC, who is also Investigation Officer (IO) of the case.
As the police had closed the case as untraced, the IO has sought fresh attempts to be made to locate the injured and submit a fresh report to the commission.
The Criminal Investigation Department (CID) of the police in its report submitted to SHRC reported the case closed “no clue was found despite strenuous efforts.”
“As per the CRPF personnel, curfew was imposed on the day and during curfew hours some unknown militants fired upon the CRPF men with intention to kill them, and in retaliation CRPF fired in self-defence in which some 35 civilians died on the spot,” reads the CID report submitted to the SHRC.
Responding to the PIW report, the activist asked the commission to direct the IG Crime to register an FIR against the 15 officers and personnel of 69 BN of CRPF named in the report.
The SHRC has now directed the IG Crime to file his response.
· All guilty were punished: BSF report
Dec 17: In a report to State Human Rights Commission, the Border Security Forces (BSF) has stated that the guilty personnel in the 1993 Sopore massacre were punished. 
The BSF has said that it had identified nineteen BSF personnel involved in the massacre in which fifty seven people were killed.
“An enquiry was initiated by the BSF, General Security Force Court (GSFC) into the incident and the BSF communicated the result of inquiry proceeding vide letter no. 06/1/93-CLO/BSF/5733 dated 11.10.2001 mentioning that the erring BSF officials /officers have been tried by the GSFC (Court Martial) under the Border Security Act, 1968 for commission of offences u/s 304, 307 and 436 RPC r/w section 34 of RPC and punished and sentenced accordingly.
“Staff court of Inquiry (SCOI) was conducted by the BSF in the firing incident of 6 Jan 1993 in which 19 BSF personnel were blamed for various acts of commission and omission.
The personnel identified were: Prakash Singh, B.B Joshi, Ajaib Singh, Charan Singh, Sudama Rai, Sanjay Kumar, Raj Kumar, S.N Singh,Baljeet Singh, Mohan Singh, Tej Raj Singh, Ranvir Singh, Chur Chand Sharma, Vachaspati Sharma, Mohan Lal, Umesh Pal Singh, Rajender Kumar, Virender Singh and Purshotam Singh.
The report of the BSF submitted before the State Human Rights commission following a petition by chairperson International Forum for Justice /Human Rights, Ahsan Untoo states, “Proceedings were initiated against them in accordance with the BSF Acts/ rules and records of evidence (ROE) were conducted against them except HC Sanjay Kumar who died before the ROE could be ordered.
“On completion of the ROE, the charges were dismissed in respect of LNK Baljeet Singh, Const Umesh Pal Singh, Const Virender Singh and Const Purshotam Singh for want/lack of evidences against them. 
“However seven personnel were tried by GSFC (Court Martial) for offences u/s 304, 307, and 436 RPC read with section 34 of RPC and after completion of trial they were awarded punishment.
Apart from this, “one personnel was tried by separate court, two others expired during pendency of disciplinary case, and one was dismissed from unit. The charges against four were dismissed, administrative action was taken against one officer and three officers were dismissed after completion of the trial.
“Sub Inspection Sudama Rai was awarded punishment of forfeiture of three years of service for the purpose of promotion and severe reprimand, LNK (now HC) Raj Kumar – forfeiture of one year of service for the purpose of promotion, pension and severe reprimand, Ct Chur Chand Singh- three months’ rigorous imprisonment in force custody, and Ct Tej Ram Sharma, Rajender Kumar, Mohan Singh and Vachaspati Sharma each were given three months’ rigorous imprisonment.
“Prakash Singh,” the report of the BSF states, “was tried by a separate GSFC U/s 40 of the BSF Act and was sentenced to forfeiture of six months of services for the purpose of pension and was also severely reprimanded.
“HC S.N Singh expired during pendency of disciplinary case, hence no action was taken against him. Similarly Const. Mohan Singh was dismissed from his service and administrative action was taken against BB Joshi.”
The report states, “Thus all the accused persons that were found guilty during the court of Inquiry and records of evidences proceedings were tried by the GSFC under BSF Acts and rules and based on the findings the court awarded sentence to them.”
· Sopore boy’s killing: SHRC says Junaid’s murder was planned
Dec 20: While the police claims that Junaid Ahmad Khuroo, a 10th standard student from Kralteng Sopore killed in 2011, was a militant and had opened fire at CRPF at Arampora, the investigation wing of the State Human Rights Commission says the boy was not a militant.
Junaid was killed on June 29, 2011, and police in a report submitted before SHRC had stated, “During investigation it was revealed that one militant had opened fire at CRPF bunker and later took shelter in the local Masjid. When he couldn’t find any escape he shot himself with pistol. The deceased was identified as Junaid.”
“Some arms and ammunitions were recovered and seized from the militant. Though, the investigation of the case is going on.”
In 2013, the investigation wing of the SHRC carried out probe in the case and in its 15 page report revealed how ‘police planned the murder of Junaid.’
“The bare perusal of the CD file reveals that the subject (Junaid) has committed suicide by firing with the pistol on left side of his head above ear. The doctor has mentioned the entry wound on left side parietal region (5mmx3mm) and exit wound on right temporal region of skull (5cmx2cm).”
“The medical officer has opined the cause of death as cranial trauma leading to brain damage and excessive hemorrhage. Besides medical officer has filled in postmortem proforma wherein he has mentioned that there had been fractured skull in the temporal and parietal region. The cause of the death is massive brain damage due to fire arm injury which leads to massive brain damage. The time of death mentioned is approximately more than four hours.”
The medical officer, the report of the SHRC investigation wing reveals, has mentioned the time of death in the post mortem report at 3.30 PM while the first information report had been lodged at 12.10 hours.
“The investigation officer while in the injury memo has shown injury on left side of the head above ear and on right side in between eye and ear. Thus contradicting the injuries that is, fracture on the skull. The injury is a result of single bullet shot.”
“The medical officer was summoned and his statement recorded by the probe wing of commission. The officer had confessed that, “he never conducted postmortem and said he examined the dead body at SOG Camp, and not at Sub District Hospital (SDH) Sopore. The medical officer has just filled the columns of the postmortem report, but has not conducted the autopsy at all.”
But the police in their report had stated, “The body was taken to SDH Sopore where it was medically examined and later autopsy done.”
“During spot inspection it was found that Masjid is adjacent to the CRPF camp. The location of the camp is such that there is no fun to fire on the bunker from a pistol. The story of the police that the militant had taken a refuge in the adjacent Masjid because he couldn’t find an escape route is not justified because there is an escape route available to the militant that leads to Sopore-Watlab road as has been shown in the site plan.”
Junaid was preparing for 10th class exams as a private candidate and was also working as a runner at a medical shop. On June 29, he left his home at 09.30 am, the report says, to collect his roll number slip from government high school Baba Yousuf, Noor Bagh Sopore and at 12 in the afternoon his father was informed about his death.
During investigation it came to fore that the then SHO Sopore, inspector Gazanfar and SI Nissar Ahmad paid a prior visit to the residence of the Junaid on 22.06.2011 and directed his father to report to police station along with his son.”
“The duo went to police station on 23.06.2011 where the SHO warned the complainant that his son is a stone pelter,” the report states.
· Govt turned down 75% of recommendations of SHRC in 2017
Dec 25: Government has rejected 75 percent recommendations of State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) in 2017 which pertained to the cases of compensation and ex-gratia relief to the victims of rights violations.
SHRC, till mid-December this year, had recommended compensation and ex-gratia relief in 59 cases out of which government has only accepted seven and rejected 44 recommendations made by the Commission. The decisions in eight other cases are under review.
The recommendations were rejected by the government’s Empowerment Committee and the District Level Screening-cum-Consultative Committees (DLSCC). 
SHRC had earlier recommended Rs 10 lakh compensation to the human shield victim Farooq Ahmad Dar who was tied to the bonnet of the Army jeep and paraded through many areas of Beerwah in Central Kashmir.
But State government rejected the Commission’s recommendations which had triggered outrage in the Valley after the incident in April parliamentary by-polls. 
State government, in its reply to SHRC in October, regarding the human shield victim case had said that, “As on date, there is no scheme or policy in vogue in the state, which could cover the payment of compensation matters like the present case.” In the case of Farooq, state government had however informed the Commission, “The Commission in its recommendations dated 10.07.2017 has inter-alia observed that the Commission is handicapped to go into the conduct of the Army, who are allegedly responsible for the incident. Having so observed, the Commission lacks jurisdiction to entertain and adjudicate upon the present matter.”
The government has rejected the recommendation of the compensation in a case of alleged custodial disappearance of Mohammad Ramzan Dar of Dangerpora area of Baramulla district. About the case, the State government in its reply to SHRC had stated “The Deputy Commissioner Baramulla vide No DCB/ARA/LC/123-Sp/11/378 dated 02-12-2011 conveyed that the complainant's husband is missing from 23.08.1993. He has further intimated that the Superintendent of Police Sopore has reported that subject was not involved in any anti-national activities. The Army authorities have reported that subject was lifted by BSF Party 16 years back and no FIR has been lodged at police station by family members, however, the case be considered for ex gratia relief as the individual had not been found involved in any subversive activities.”
“As per the reports of CID organization missing person along with other person namely Ghulam Hassan Dar were arrested by security forces on 23.08.1993 suspecting as militants but after questioning were released. The subject (missing person) went missing since then and the other person returned to his home. The joining of militancy or exfilitration to POK/PAK cannot be ruled out,” reads the government reply in connection with the case.
Stated government while rejecting the recommendations of the SHRC had further stated that “In this regard, no report stands lodged by his NOKs since his missing. However, nothing adverse has been reported against the subject as well as her missing husband and other family members. Thus the Committee observed that the recommendations of Commission cannot be accepted.”

Stone pelters “amnesty”
· 
The government’s amnesty to the “first time stone pelters” ignited some hope among the youth to continue their future smoothly. Most of the boys are students and area at very crucial stages of their careers. There was also criticism of the policy by restricting it to only few youth. There are thousands of youth still figured in police records as stone pelters, therefore, as ‘criminals’. A section of political parties call the scheme a “cosmetic measure” without addressing the source of the protests.
Chronology of the claims of FIR withdrawal made by the police, this month in different districts.    
· 390 ‘first time stone throwers’ granted amnesty in north Kashmir
Dec 10: Following Chief Minister Mehbooba Mufti’s recent announcement of amnesty to “first time offenders of stone pelting”, as many as 390 youth from Baramulla and Sopore town have been granted amnesty and FIRs against them withdrawn. 
This was revealed at an interaction session titled ‘a new beginning’ held at Dak Bunglow at Baramulla. Scores of youth and their parents participated. 
The session was presided over by MLA Baramulla Javed Hassan Beig. DIG North Kashmir and SSP Baramulla were present. 
Giving break-up of the beneficiaries of the amnesty, SSP Baramulla, Imtiyaz Hussain on the sidelines of the event told media that 240 youth Baramulla and 150 from Sopore town have been granted amnesty and FIRs against them withdrawn. 
· FIRs withdrawn against 115 youth of Tral, Awantipora, Pampore
Dec 11: The police have withdrawn FIRs against 115 youth of Tral, Awantipora and Pampore areas under the amnesty scheme recently announced by Chief Minister Mehbooba Mufti.
An interactive programme was held on Monday at district police lines Awantipora between these youth and police.
During the programme, it was announced that 115 youth were granted amnesty. The youth were “first-time stone-pelters,” it was informed during the programme.
Superintendent of police Awantipora, Mohammad Zahid Malik, DSP Pampore and DSP Awantipora chaired the programme in which these youth were asked to refrain from stone pelting in future.
The parents of these youth were asked to counsel their children. The youth were also asked to shape their careers. “The interaction with youth aims to provide them confidence so that they can begin their life. The FIRs against these youth will be withdrawn and they can build their careers without any hassle,” the SSP said.
· Police withdraw FIRs against 176 youth in Ganderbal
Dec 14: The police have withdrawn FIRs against 176 youth of Ganderbal district under the amnesty scheme recently announced by Chief Minister Mehbooba Mufti.
This was revealed at an interaction session in Ganderbal where scores of youth and their parents participated.
SSP Ganderbal Fayaz Ahmed Lone asked the youngsters to take full advantage of the amnesty scheme and begin a new life as peaceful citizens.
SSP further said that they are initiating a skill development programme under UDAAN scheme where the youngsters will be imparted with skill training that will help them to shape their future in a better way.
He assured them full support from police.
Among others, ADDC Ganderbal, ASP Ganderbal, DySP Ops Ashiq Ahmed Dar was present on the occasion.
· Police withdraws cases against 146 youth in Pulwama
Dec 21: Police withdrew cases against 145 youth in south Kashmir’s Pulwama district named in twenty-one cases of stone-pelting. 
“146 youth named in 21 cases have been granted amnesty today,” DIG south Kashmir S P Pani said while addressing scores of youth and their families at police station Pulwama today.
He said the youth granted amnesty won’t face any harassment. 
“They won’t be called to police stations and won’t face any issues in getting passport or other services,” DIG said.
· 383 stone-pelters granted amnesty in Anantnag: Police
Dec 28: The police said they have withdrawn cases against 383 youth of Anantnag district who had been named in dozens of cases of stone pelting.
South Kashmir range deputy inspector general of police SP Pani said the youth granted amnesty won’t face any issues and can pursue their careers.
	“They won’t face issues in getting passport or other services. They don’t need to follow their cases anymore,” he said, addressing scores of youth and their families during a counselling session held at Dak Bangklow in Anantnag.
The counselling session was organised by the district police Anantnag in collaboration with the civil administration.
Besides the DIG, senior superintendent of police Anantnag Altaf Ahmad Khan, deputy commissioner Anantnag Muhamad Younis Malik and other senior police and civil administration officials attended the session.
“We will consider withdrawing the FIRs of those youth who were involved in stone pelting in the past but are living peacefully now,” the DIG said.
Pani said that so far cases against 4000 youth involved in stone pelting have been withdrawn in the Valley.

PUDR demands withdrawal of Public Property Prevention of Damage Ordinance

Dec 04: Peoples Union for Democratic Rights (PUDR) has condemned the promulgation of The Jammu and Kashmir Public Property (Prevention of Damage) (Amendment) Ordinance.  
“The ordinance criminalises anyone calling for a protest or demonstration which leads to damage of public property with an imprisonment of two to five years and fine as high as the market value of the property damaged. The speed with which State Police has acted to give effect to the ordinance is worrisome as one FIR has already been registered on 23 November 2017 against ‘unknown persons’ for damaging public property (tree guards) in Parimpora, Srinagar,” Cijo Joy and Anushka Singh, Secretaries, PUDR said in a statement. 
	“This new ordinance has to be seen in the backdrop of the continuous militarisation and oppression of people in the valley by the Indian armed forces. Kashmir has been witnessing an internal armed conflict since its accession to India and the brutality of the same has been heightened with the killing of Burhan Wani last year. The onslaught on people with lethal weapons including pellet guns which maims people for life has been the strategy employed by the State to curb opposition to their forcible control,” he said. 
“The double speak of government is appalling as on one hand government has withdrawn charges pressed against over 4900 youths for stone pelting which took place from 2008 to 2014 and now comes up with this ordinance through the backdoor which systematically suppress alternative perspective and punishes people for expressing their democratic right of dissent,” the statement said. 
“The new ordinance under the garb to protect properties within the state narrows down the space available for resistance as there already exists provisions which penalise mischief done to public property under the State's Criminal Code i.e. Randhir Penal Code (Sections 283, 425, 431 etc.). Further, it expands the definition of property and includes within its ambit even private holdings (both movable and immovable) alongwith public property and punishes not just the act of protest or demonstration, protest with fire or explosive substance but also anyone who abets the same via its Section 4A and 4B,” the statement said.
"This ordinance will allow state administration to pick up innocent men and falsely charge them for causing mischief and it will further become a potential ground to commit torture upon men and women.” 
“With existing oppressive laws like Public Security Act, National Security Act, this ordinance will further provide grounds for abuse of law and will add to woes of people while crushing their aspirations and civil and human rights,” they said. 
“PUDR demands that the Jammu and Kashmir government immediately withdraw this draconian ordinance at the earliest,” they added. 

Kashmiris harassment outside
· 
There seems no end to the harassment and assaults on Kashmiris visiting or spread across Indian states for medical, education or business purposes. This month’s incidents further expose the frequent assurances / advisories given by the government to the Kashmiris in Indian states. The failure of the government in curbing the incidents further deepen the fear among the Kashmiri in Indian states and their families at home. 
· Kashmiri brothers assaulted in Bengaluru 
Dec 19: A group of men beat up a 24-old hotel management student and his brother from Jammu and Kashmir and damaged their car after getting ticked off as the duo could not speak Kannada.
Police have arrested two of the group of almost 10 people. 
The incident happened last December 11, Monday, when the brothers were returning home in their car in the wee hours after having dinner at Bhoopasandra. They had stopped their car near the NTI bus stand at NTI Layout in Sanjaynagar to attend a phone call. Four men on two bikes stopped near the car. They asked the brothers something in Kannada and when the young men said they did not know Kannada and were unable to understand what was being said to them, the accused allegedly insisted that they speak in Kannada.
They then told the brothers they would be allowed to go only if they spoke in in Kannada. The victims said they were from North India and did not know Kannada. The men then called other people to the spot. All together they started pelting the victims and their car with stones. The front wind shield of the car is said to have been completely damaged. When the victims called the police control room for help, the accused escaped from the spot.
The hotel management student Lisan Ahmad and his elder brother reside in Nagashettyhalli and have been residents of Bengaluru for five years now.
"It was very scary. The accused surrounded us asking us to speak in Kannada. Though we told them we did not know how to, they kept insisting we speak in Kannada. The gang attacked us with stones and also damaged our car. My brother called the police control room for help and the police came to our rescue within a few minutes," Ahmad told BM.
The accused are alleged to have used abusive language and even hitting Lisan with a stone on his head and other parts of the body. The accused are said to have even threatened to kill the men if they did not speak in Kannada.
When they called the police control room number on 100, the accused fled. The police took Lisan to the KC General Hospital for treatment as he was bleeding.
"The incident has happened in Sanjayanagar. The victims were beaten for not speaking in Kannada. Two of the accused, identified as Mahesh and Harish, have been arrested. Mahesh is a fashion designer while Harish is a driver by profession," DCP (North) Chetan Singh Rathor told Bangalore Mirror. The police after arresting the accused called the victims to the police station who has identified them. The accused are said to have paid for the car damages. The accused were arrested based on the footage of the CCTVs installed near the NTI bus stop. The police are on the lookout for the other accused.
The Sanjayanagar police have registered a case (FIR No- 335/2017) under sections 324(causing hurt by dangerous weapons), 341 (wrongful restraint) 504(intentional insult with intent to provoke breach of the peace) of the Indian Penal Code.
· Anantnag man ‘beaten, harassed’ by Punjab police
Dec 25: Days after the Jammu and Kashmir Chief Minister Mehbooba Mufti took a strong exception to the reported roughing up of two Kashmiris in Bangalore, a native of Anantnag was allegedly beaten up by four policemen of Punjab near Chandigarh on December 24.
Narrating his tale of woe, Mukhtar Ahmade from Anantnag said he along with his family was on way from Amritsar to Chandigarh when four policemen of Punjab police stopped him and asked to report at police post Khanpora which is nearly seven kilometers from Chandigarh.
“I had no alternative but to report at the police post Khanpora near fly over. The four policemen – three head constables and a sub-inspector - who were in the influence of liquor, started beating me ruthlessly. Without assigning any reason for the beating, they continued hitting me left and right for 15-25 minutes. My children who were in the vehicle outside the police post came in and asked the policemen the reason for this highhandedness”, Mukhtar said in a message which went viral in the social media.
 	Mukhtar said the policemen used abusive language and told him that he looks “like  a terrorist.” “You are Kashmiri, hence you are a stone pelter and look like a terrorist. They did not listen to me and my pleas to clarify my position fell into deaf ears”.
 	“I told them that they can contact DIG Kashmir or SP Anantnag to verify my credentials but they did not listen to me. They continue to say that I look like a terrorist and abused me and misbehaved with my children. I told them what measuring rod you have to judge a person as a terrorist. I told them to see my identity card and get it verified. They did not listen.”
“When public outside gathered, they agreed to see my identity card. I told them that I am ready to face any investigation. After some time they saw my card and I was allowed but they destroyed the insurance policy of the vehicle and noted the vehicle number.”
After covering a distance of two to three kilometers I stopped the car and was undecided whether to go back or proceed towards Chandigarh.
“The incident has shocked me. Being a Kashmiri is a sin. We are not safe in our homes or outside. Where to go? I had come to Amritsar for treatment of an ailment. Had there been good hospitals and medicines in our Kashmir, why should one risk life and come outside the state”, he said adding two youths were roughed up in Bangalore some days back.
Mukhtar alleged that the state government is enjoying power. They have no care for the people they rule.
He said he is not sending the message to the people of Kashmir for any help. “God has given me enough. People who know me are aware that I am not afraid of anything. But if I or my family is harmed the Punjab police is responsible as they have noted my vehicle number and can go to any extent to harm me.”
Mukhtar thanked his luck that it was day time. “Had it been evening or night they would have killed me.”

Video showing police officer 'abusing' medico goes viral
Police Regret Incident, Assure Action

A video showing a police officer purportedly threatening and abusing a medico on duty at Emergency and Trauma hospital in Qazigund area of Anantang district has gone viral on social networking site evoking massive outage.
The Jammu and Kashmir Police, meanwhile, have taken cognizance of the incident and initiated inquiry against the accused officer of the rank of deputy superintendent of police.
“Talk to me courteously. I will teach you a lesson. Will see to you tonight. I will drag you out. Do you understand? You have not seen what fear is. Will show you what fear is,” the accused officer is seen shouting at the doctor in the video. 
The doctor is seen daring the police officer to shoot him. “What will you do? Would you shoot me? Come and shoot,” the doctor is heard telling the police officer.
Speaking to Greater Kashmir, Dr Naseer Ahmad alleged the police officer got infuriated after he (the doctor) sought documents from them (police) regarding an accident case.
“Few policemen came to the hospital on Thursday morning and I told them to bring all the documents in order to get the medical opinion in the accident case dating back to May 2017,” Dr Naseer said.
He said that soon the DSP came and tried to force “me to sign the medico-legal form without producing the documents. As I refused, this infuriated him and he hurled abuses and threatened me of implicating in a false case,” the doctor said. 
Police, meanwhile have regretted the incident and assured action into the matter.
“In reference to the Qazigund incident, we regret it and at the same time assure that necessary action shall be taken into the matter,” said a spokesman.
The officer allegedly involved in the incident has been directed to report to the DIG office south Kashmir range for an enquiry.
On Dec 22, a group of doctors staged protest at Srinagar against “repeated threats” to medicos during duty hours. 
They demanded that Government should bring legislation on the pattern of other states of India making assault on doctors, paramedical staff during duty hours and damage to hospitals a “non-bailable offence.”


Surveillance
· 
· GoI singles out JK citizens, mulls issuing smart IDs
Dec 02: The Modi-led government in New Delhi is considering issuing a special “hybrid smart card” for residents of Jammu and Kashmir. A document of the Ministry of Human Resource and Development (MHRD) accessed by Kashmir Reader confirms that the Home Ministry has “agreed” to support the proposal.
The Home Ministry plans to annul all other identity cards in the state and introduce the smart card to have access to data of each JK citizen. The proposal includes having a unique identification code for the state’s citizens which can be used to access their data anytime.
“A hybrid smart card for which every citizen in the Valley could be considered through of, which can serve as an offline as well as online authentication card,” read the MHRD’s minutes of the meeting. The minutes say that “representatives of the home ministry noted this and agreed to support the proposal”.
A senior official in New Delhi said that the government of India has decided to consult the Mehbooba-led government in the state on this proposal. “The proposal of the smart card will end the identity crisis for JK citizens outside the state. It will end the unnecessary harassment to Kashmiris in other states as their database will be available online,” he said.
PDP leader Waheed-ur-Rehman Parra told media that they have no accurate information about the purpose of the card. He said the government would take people into consideration and there has to be some “justification” for issuing the card.
“Once it is clear why the card is being issued, we will take a position,” he said.
· Army carries out house numbering in Pulwama, leaves residents riled
Dec 04: The Army is numbering the houses in the restive Pulwama district of south Kashmir which has left the residents fuming.
According to local residents the Army has started numbering the houses. This is besides the door-to-door survey in which armed force personnel go for searches of households as well.
This is going on from last few days and has left residents wary and riled.
According to locals the house numbering was currently going on in villages of Trichal, Tahab and Naira in Pulwama. The local police and civil administration apparently have not been informed.
Deputy Commissioner Pulwama, G M Dar, said “nothing of this sort” is in his knowledge.
“Neither police nor army has informed me. I will look into the matter,” he told media.
Srinagar based Defence spokesman, Col Rajesh Kalia, confirmed that Army is conducting numbering of houses.
He said there is nothing to worry.
“It is just for regular maintenance of records for the concerned Army battalion in the area. It also helps to keep record about the prominent citizens living in the area,” he said.
Local sources said that armed men come in the morning and number houses with black paint in Trichal.
A local resident, on anonymity, said after they had rubbed off the numbers, Army men warned of consequences.
“They even write the number of family members which includes males, females and children in the family,” he said.
“They carry a book with them and later enter the house which they have registered in their book. My house has also been numbered,’’ said an another local resident.
Earlier a similar survey was conducted last year in various villages of Pattan.
“Our houses were also numbered last year and we have not rubbed off the paint. The number is written on our main gate, although it has defaced the building. Every house of our village has been numbered,” said Irfan Mohammad, a resident of Pattan.
Source in Army said that the numbering was done to beef up operational capabilities and advised that “people shouldn’t worry about it.”
“As there are no particular lane numbers or house numbers in villages, so we do this numbering to keep track of things. It is just for operational purposes,” sources said. The government forces have increased their footprint in restive areas and are going for routine patrolling to keep tab on militant movements.

Jammu jails overcrowded with inmates from Kashmir
‘450 prisoners lodged in the space meant for 380’

Dec 20: The data revealed by DG prisons suggest the jails in Jammu division were overcrowded as most of the under trails from Kashmir valley have been lodged there in spite of prisons in valley having more capacity to lodge them near their homes.
A report submitted by Director General of Police (DG) Prisons department says the jails in Jammu division were overcrowded as a result of which the inmates were suffering, 
In a reply to State Human Rights Commission (SHRC), DG Prisons early this year had stated that in five district jails and sub-jail of the Jammu division, large number of inmates is lodged there despite having less capacity in these jails.
According to data revealed by DG prisons in response to SHRC, 33 per cent of inmates were lodged in district jail Jammu in excess of the jail capacity, 10 percent extra inmates were lodged in district jail Udhampur, 13 percent extra inmates were lodged in district jail Rajouri, 40 percent more inmates were in sub-jail Hiranagar and 27 percent extra inmates were lodged in Reasi sub-jail.
DG prisons in his report had stated that in district jail Jammu as per on 22-02-2017, 598 inmates were lodged there while as the intake capacity of the jails is only 450.
Similarly in the district jail Udhampur of Jammu division of the state, there is capacity of 250 inmates while as 276 inmates were lodged there.
In district jail Rajouri, 113 prisoners were lodged there as the intake capacity of the jails is only 100.
The sub-jail Hiranagar in Jammu division has an intake capacity of just 45 and the number of lodged inmates there is 105.
In the Reasi sub-jail of Jammu division 38 inmates have been lodged in a jail having a capacity of just 30 inmates.
However according to the data revealed by DG prisons the 14 districts and central jails across the state were almost full with the prisoners as of 22-02-2017.
To confirm the present status of the inmates regarding the overcrowding of the inmates in different jails of Jammu, when contacted DG Prisons, SK Mishra said, “In the 15 jails of the state currently we have an intake capacity of 2762 inmates and more than 2640 inmates are currently lodged in the said capacity.”
Mishra further said that he doesn’t have a exact figures available right now but, “In Jammu jail there is an intake capacity of approximately 380 and around 450 inmates are been lodged.”
“Overall we don’t have that much of overcrowding of inmates apart from some jails in the both divisions,” DGP Prisons said.

New ‘social media policy’ to discipline govt employees

Dec 27: While announcing a new social media policy for its employees, the J&K government has made it clear that “law enforcement agencies” will monitor the social media activities of government employees and call for legal action against them if anything they post or share is against the state’s interests. The policy also curtly states that their freedom of speech will be restricted if maintaining law and order “outweighs” that concern.
The notification of the new social media policy was made public on Monday. It stated that it is aimed at providing guidance on “correct use of social media” by government employees.[image: ]

The policy draft cautions employees that law-enforcement agencies will observe the content and information made available by them through social media.
“They (employees) should use their best judgment in posting material that is neither inappropriate nor harmful to the State,” the policy draft says.
Elucidating that violations of the policy will face departmental action, it states that employees shall not use their personal social media accounts for any political activity or endorsing the posts or tweets or blogs of any political figure.
No government employee should through any post, tweet or otherwise, discuss or criticise on social media any policy pursued or action taken by the government, it states.
“No government employee shall post, tweet or share content that is political or anti-secular and communal in nature or subscribe to pages, communities or Twitter handles and blogs of such nature,” it says.
It further lays guidelines on how to use social media to avoid legal action. It states that employees should use their official title and department affiliation on their personal social media page for professional identification or biographic data, as long as they do not create an impression that they are communicating in an official capacity.
If they are communicating in personal capacity, employees must avoid stating, implying, or creating the impression that they are communicating in an official capacity, the policy explains.
“Employees must not post, comment or share public information on matters related to their work or the work of the department,” it states.
The policy tells the employees that they should not engage in discussion on social media by way of tweets, status updates, posts or blogs on issues that are political in nature.
Besides, “Employees must not post, update, share or promote any status or post that may be contentious or has the potential to create governance or law and order issues or are seen to propagate anything which is anti-social, anti-national or illegal,” it states.
The policy states that if employees use anonymity on social media, they will be penalised.
“This policy may restrict the speech of its employees when employees are speaking on matters of public concern, or when the Government’s interest in maintaining law & order outweighs its employees’ interest of freedom of speech,” it states.
It also states that government employees, whose services are placed at the disposal of a company, corporation, organisation or a local authority by the government, shall also be deemed to be government employees.
The policy claims that there have been incidents in which employees have “vented their work stress on social media, thereby creating unwanted issues for the administration.”
“Such acts lead to breach of discipline contrary to what is expected of government employees,” it states. “Employees should be aware of the effect their actions may have on their image as well as that of their departments.”
The policy allows that a government employee may, for the purpose or removing misapprehensions, correcting misstatements, and refuting disloyal and seditious propaganda, defend and explain to the public the policy of the government in posts and tweets on social media.
The policy also lays down some security tips on social media use for employees. It states that employees should refrain from using third-party apps, as many have been found carrying malicious software.
“The enticing ads on social media are also a source of viruses and malware, which are a potential security threat and should not be clicked on,” it states. “The employees should be careful while accepting invitations on social media platforms, as subversive elements are always trying to be friends with government employees to extract information.”
In the concluding part, the policy says that the government will monitor social media “to track violations of the guidelines and shall maintain official records of violations that contain certain data related to social media activity of government employees.”

In Hajin, ‘army raid’ has destroyed people’s safeguards against winter

On December 7, it was 11am and smoke is still billowing out of the stacks of dried grass that residents of Mir Mohalla Hajin had stocked for the winter. Uninvited guests are arriving at the residences of people here to console them for their “unbearable losses”, suffered the previous day when soldiers of the army’s 3 Rashtriya Rifles set afire 68 stacks of dried grass and other firewood.
Standing by the burnt stacks, Ghulam Ahmad Dar, 70, points towards his two-storey house and says, “All went up in the air. What shall I do for my domestic animals in the winter now?”
Dar said that it was about 1:30pm on Wednesday when army soldiers entered Mir Mohalla. “I was at home, along with the women. We could not stop the army men, as we were frightened, but the army’s actions angered me so much that I took up stones in my hand to hurl at them. My family stopped me,” the old man said.
Dar’s neighbour, Bashir Ahmad Rather, 45, took a group of reporters to his house, where his sister-in-law came out and pleaded: “Please ask the government to let us live peacefully.”
“We were inside our home,” Rather said, pointing towards his newly furnished one-storey house. “Army men came and set fire to the grass. Within no time, it was smoke all around and we could not see who was where and doing what. I have livestock of 200 and many other domestic animals.” At this, Rather’s sister-in-law said, “What shall we do now? Our livestock will die without grass.”
The place where the army soldiers burnt the grass stacks belongs to a man named Ghulam Mohi-ud-Din and it is where several villagers keep their stock of grass for the winter, Rather said.
Some yards ahead of Rather’s house, Farooq Ahmad Khan, 45, was sitting on the veranda of his house, smoking hookah. “The army men gate-crashed my house and broke all windowpanes with canes and stones,” he said. “Just five days ago, they set on fire all my stock of grass. What happened on Wednesday was the second incident of the army setting on fire the stocks of dried grass.”
Khan said he had livestock of 15 sheep and two cows.
Outside, on the road, a large gathering of people was discussing questions such as:
“Why should we pay for the failure of their (government forces’) cordon (against militants)?”
“It is a fight between government forces and militants; why should civilians become targets?”
To a question about the persistent protests in the area, a seventy-year-old, Ghulam Nabi Parray, replied,  
“It is my neighbour today whose property was attacked; tomorrow it may be mine. Of course, there is resentment.”
“Let the government forces fight against those who have guns in their hands,” he added.
A 30-year-old youth among the group said that the army’s actions were part of “Operation Tod-Phod”, a colloquial word for vandalism.
“It was around 11:30am when around 100-150 army soldiers from the 3 RR camp came walking via the watershed-Shahgund bund, and reached Bon Mohalla. At least three Casper vehicles and two other vehicles carrying soldiers came through main Hajin town. All of them converged in Bon Mohalla and Parray Mohalla. From there, they went berserk. They set on fire the grass stacks and a cowshed as well,” this young man said.
“It was a pre-planned act,” said the group in one voice.
Inside a house on the Shahgund road near Syed Mohalla, Aijaz-ul-Haq showed his broken Skoda car. “We closed the main gate and all doors of our house,” he told a group of journalists inside his courtyard, “but the army men came in by climbing the boundary wall. They damaged our car and tried to enter our house, but failed. Then they broke all the window panes.”
Haq is a neighbour of incarcerated Tehreek-e-Hurriyat member Abdul Hamid Parray, who is in jail since February 3, 2016. Hamid’s seven-member family lives in a single-storey house which was attacked twice in the past one week.
“The army men came and stopped outside our house and started abusing my father,” said Abdul Parray’s son, Hilal Ahmad. “They threw stones on our house and broke the window panes.”
The Parray family has now put polythene sheets on the windows to keep out the cold.
“Last time (they attacked), they set on fire our dried grass,” Hilal Ahmad said.
Across the nallah that flows along Shahgund road, lives Mohammad Shaban Parray. One of his three daughters, who studies in Class 10, said, “About 8 army men banged on our main door and broke all the windows. One of my sisters recently underwent surgery and we were very frightened. The army men were trying to enter our rooms.”
“We worked hard to construct this house,” said Shaban’s wife, “but we are more concerned about our honour and the safety of our daughters.”
“Our honour is our pride,” said her daughter Afroza. “They tried to break the doors… the attack lasted for at least 20 minutes.”
Nearby Shaban’s house, a family is busy shifting their stacks of grass to some other place. Pointing at it, a university student of the village said, “The cost of that grass is around Rs 30,000. Now that the dried grass in our area has been set on fire, there will be shortage in the winter. It is a crisis in the making.”
An enraged Afroza said, “We want freedom, that is why it is being done to us.”
On the way to Bon Mohalla from Syed Mohalla, Mohammad Sultan Shaikh, in his seventies, told Kashmir Reader: “It was loot. I could not save anything from my bakery shop.”
Shaikh said that soon after the “army raid”, he left his shop. “When we returned, there was nothing inside; the roti I had prepared was lying on the road, being eaten by dogs.”
One youth said that in Danger Mohalla of Hajin, army men barged into the courtyard of a house where orchardists were packing apples. “They took around 8 packs of apples and put them in their vehicles,” he said.
Hajin, according to the 2011 census, has more than 33,000 residents and is spread over 23 mohallas and 13 wards.
In a lone house standing amid a vast swathe of rice fields lives Mehtaba, a widow who has no son. She is weeping. Women from the neighbourhood sit in her courtyard and console her daughter and other family members. “I was inside (home), along with my married daughter,” Mehtaba said. “They (army men) came and I pleaded with them to leave us and our house untouched, but they broke all the window panes.”
Mehtaba said she lives at the house of her son-in-law.
“She is ailing and at time does not have money to buy medicine,” said one of her neighbours. Some friends of Mehtaba’s son-in-law, Ghulam Hassan Khan, have put on plastic sheets on the windows to stop the cold.
On the other side of the dry nallah along Shahgund road, a youth said, “My father, brother and I took up axes and stood guard around our piles of grass. No one (army men) came forward.”
“But it was a daredevil act,” he said of his action.
Some metres further, towards Bon Mohalla, from where the “Operation Tod-Phod” began, stands a half-destroyed cowshed. It belongs to a retired gazetted officer.
“This is terrorism, plain terrorism,” said one of the sons of Mohammad Yousuf Wani, whose cowshed and stacks of grass were set on fire. “My car and two motorcycles were also damaged.”
“We could barely save our cows,” the son said.
Wani’s younger brother is a Tehsildar-rank officer and lives adjacent to his brother. The elder brother’s house suffered the major damage; all its windowpanes have been destroyed.
“We called the DC Bandipora but he expressed helplessness,” the Wanis claimed. A few window panes of the Tehsildar’s house were also broken.
“Militancy is across Kashmir, not just here,” said Wani’s son. “Why do they target us, the common people?”
Locals of Bon Mohalla said that the army men fired in the air as well.
Beside the houses of the Wani brothers are ashes of about 30 stacks of grass. Locals said that they called the fire and emergency services, but the army soldiers did not let them come.
“The whole area was filled with smoke and women had to be rushed to the community health centre (CHC) because they suffered suffocation,” said a resident of Parray Mohalla who identified himself as Ahmad. “The army men did not allow the fire and emergency services to move towards our area. Their staff was even beaten.”
A trader who lives in Hajin said, “youth had become angry at the employees of the fire services. They were pelted with stones by youths who asked them why they had failed to do their duty.”
At community health centre (CHC) Hajin, records show that three employees of the fire and emergency services were treated on Wednesday. “One was hit in the face and had his tooth broken, Another was injured in the leg and yet another in his hand,” an official at the CHC said. “Some ladies also came here, gasping for breath. They had suffered suffocation from the smoke of the burning grass.”
After the fire alarm was sounded, a fire tender from the nearby Naidkhai station had to be called to Hajin. “The driver of that fire tender was hit in his face,” local sources said. Two fire tenders suffered damages and their drivers had to flee.
President of the Hajin traders’ federation, Mushtaq Ahmad, said, “At least six shops were completely damaged.”
His colleague, Nisar Ahmad, said, “About 68 stacks of grass were set on fire.” He said that all the houses in Bon Mohalla suffered damage.
At the police station Hajin located almost two kilometres away from where the incident took place, the station house officer (SHO) Mudasir Ahmad told this newspaper, “An FIR, number 77/2017, has been registered and an investigation has been started. All the parties, including army, will be questioned.”
The SHO said, “It was routine patrol of army soldiers from 3 RR which came under stone-pelting attack. The army men are not trained to contain the law-and-order situation which was created after the stone-pelting incident.”
“We held a meeting with the traders today, which was chaired by the SDPO (sub-divisional police officer),” he said.
Mushtaq Ahmad said that in the meeting, “Police officers said that they were sad for the incident.”
The SHO added, “At least two army soldiers were injured after being hit by stones. One of them required two stitches.”

Militarization
· 
· Govt. gives 1600 kanals land in GOGO to army, 5 years back 
Dec 14: Even as Jammu and Kashmir Government is trying its best to get the land illegally occupied by army vacated in the state, a deal transferring of land at the Gogoland near Humhama to the army has come to surface.
an army is in the occupation of the land measuring 1,600 kanals at Gogoland near Humhama as the government has transferred the land to it nearly five years ago, revenue records revealed.
A cursory look at the revenue records revealed that the land has been transferred to the army on January 9, 2012. It was, however, not known for what purpose the land has been allotted to the army.
Locals alleged that the land has been transferred to the army by the then Government without taking into consideration the problems arising out of it to the local population. They have already initiated legal action against the government in this regard.
Meanwhile, an advocate of Jammu and Kashmir high court, Babar Qadiri, confirmed that he has been approached by the locals to file a PIL in the high court to get the transfer order revoked.
Qadiri said that the revenue records are sufficient proof to file a PIL in the interest of the locals and he is going to file the PIL in the high court shortly.
Kashmir Wire tried to contact the army and Deputy Commissioner Budgam for their comments but they were not available.
It may be recalled that the state government is still fighting to regain control of Toto ground, a vast area near Batamaloo, taken by army decades ago. The state government, in order to regain the area, has already allotted alternate land to the army at Sharifabad but the army has not vacated the land at Toto ground as yet.
· Defence ministry agrees to pay rent for Anantnag high-ground
Land-owners Ask:Why payment will be considered from 2005, not 1992?
Dec 18: The union defence ministry has accorded its sanction for payment of rent to “rightful owners” of 1500 kanal out of 2000 kanal land being used by the army since 1992 at high ground, Anantnag. The payment of rent, however, has been considered from year 2005, and not 1992, much to the disappointment of scores of land-owners.  
Defence estates officer for Kashmir Daman Singh told media that the ministry of defence has accorded sanction for payment of rent for the land which is under use by army’s Rashtriya Rifles at high ground, Anantnag.
	The deputy commissioner Anantnag has been asked to submit the requisition so that the money is released to the rightful owners at the earliest, he said.
A source said that this is for the first time that the ministry has formally sanctioned release of rent in favour of the land owners.
	“The rent will be paid from 2005 as per the rates already fixed,” the source said.
The army is in possession of land at three places at Anantnag high ground, including Fatehgarh, Kheriman Donipawa and Qasba-e-Baghat. 
“Only two places have been considered for payment of rent—Fatehgarh and Kheriman Donipawa while Qasba-e-Baghat has been completely left out. The total land under the use of army at these three places is 2005.24 kanal,” the source said. According to land owners, the entire land at Fatehgarh and Khirman Donipawa comprises apple and almond orchards.
“We are surprised to see that when then the land has been under the use of army since 1992, why the rent would be paid from year 2005?” asked Showkat Misger, who owns more than 35 kanal land at Khirman Donipawa and 12 kanal at Fatehgarh. Misger, along with hundreds of other land owners, has been on the forefront of demanding compensation from the army. 
“We have knocked every door, met every minister, but to no avail. We met former chief minister Omar Abdullah and also the present chief minister Mehbooba Mufti and discussed the issue threadbare,” Misger said.
Recently, we presented a detailed memorandum to defence minister Nirmala Sitaraman during her visit to Gulmarg and also requested her to look into the issue on priority, he said.
“It seems approval to the payment of rent is the outcome of defence minister’s intervention,” he said.
Misger said that the not a single person dared to go to high ground “given the level of fear” since 1992. 
“There is a proper agreement between the army and the locals who own the land at all the three places. The agreement has signatures of then officers who were at the helm in 1992. Since the area was declared as disturbed under disturbed areas act (DDA) in 1990, we couldn’t speed up our fight for the compensation,” he said.
“Before ‘90s, I would earn Rs 5 lakh a month from the land I owned at Fatehgarh and KhirmanDonipawa while my neighbours would earn more than that,” he said.
In a meeting chaired by governor NN Vohra in March 2016 in Jammu, the army had agreed to vacate 456.60 kanal land out of total 2005.24 kanal held by it since early 1990s, by March 31. The then general officer commanding-in-chief of Udhampur-based northern command, lieutenant general DS Hooda had informed the Governor about the decision.
Earlier, former Chief Minister, late Mufti Muhammad Sayeed—while chairing civil-military liaison conference at SKICC Srinagar in September 2015—had asked the army to vacate the land at Fatehgarh area of high ground required for expansion of Kashmir University’s South Campus as well as developing a new housing colony to de-congest the town. He had then set a three-month deadline for the same, but there was no headway.

Army man suicides

Dec 14: An Army soldier posted in Jammu and Kashmir committed suicide. The jawan Lance Naik Parvesh Kumar Mishra from Romeo Battery Company of 118 Medium Regiment committed suicide by using his INSAS rifle. He was posted near Challa village in RS Pura district of Jammu and Kashmir.
His regiment is currently taking part in an ongoing Army exercise named Kaamyab, which started on December 4.

Kashmiri Pandits 
· 
· KPs in valley will get one job per family
Dec 02: On the instructions of the Narendra Modi led Union government, the Jammu and Kashmir government has decided to give one job to one non-migrant family of Kashmiri Pandits. A state government official told media that they will shortlist 500 candidates from the 810 Hindu families who have been living in Kashmir.
	The Centre has fast tracked all the recent decisions taken to address the issues in Jammu and Kashmir, especially the human issues. After announcing a package to families that had migrated to Jammu in 1947, the Union Home Ministry has instructed the state government to provide one government job to each family of non-migrant Hindus in the Kashmir valley.
	West Pakistani refugees and those Hindu families who migrated from POK to Jammu are in the process of receiving the Central package. The Hindu Welfare Society of Kashmir has welcomed the move and said that they were completely neglected in the past many years. “We have been living in poverty. Employment to each family will provide the much needed financial cushion,” said one of the members of the society to this newspaper. A senior officer of the state government told the media that Divisional Commissioner, Kashmir, Baser Ahmed Khan will select candidates from the few hundred non migrant Pandit families.
	The president of Kashmir Pandit Sangarsh Simiti told media that he hopes that the procedures will be completed very soon. He said that these families were discriminated by successive Central governments. Sanjay Tikku further told media that he had filed a writ petition in the J&K High Court few years back seeking directions to the Central and state governments to extend the Prime Minister’s package to those Kashmiri Hindus living in the valley.
· PMDP: J&K starts filling up 3,000 posts for migrant Pandits
Dec 19: The Jammu and Kashmir government has told the central government that it has started the process for filling up 3,000 posts, funded under Prime Minister’s Development Package, for the state.
Of these, 1660 posts have been referred to recruiting agency J&K service selection board while another 500 posts have been handed over to the home department for filling them up, the union home secretary was told by state government authorities during a meeting to review PMDP package at New Delhi on December 1.
During his visit to Kashmir in 2015, Prime Minister NarendraModi had announced Rs 80,000 crore development package for Jammu and Kashmir, a large portion of which was allocated for hydropower projects in the central sector and tunnels that would connect Ladakh with Kashmir.
The Pandit families who didn’t migrate from Kashmir after 1989 and are presently residing in the Valley have also been made eligible for jobs under the package, for the first time.
A review note that was prepared by the government reads that 500 posts were being referred to a panel to be constituted under divisional commissioner Kashmir for making selections amongst non-migrant Kashmiri Pandit families who are residing in Kashmir.
Besides, another 50 Class-IV posts were being referred to relief organisation for making selections and clarifications have been sought from administrative departments concerned for filling up remaining 290 posts.
An official said that under the package for return of migrant Pandits to the Valley, the previous Congress-led UPA government had announced 6,000 posts for the migrants. While New Delhi had agreed to bear financial liabilities for 3,000 posts, the state government had been asked to fund the remaining 3,000 posts.
However the state pleaded with the central government to fund the remaining 3000 posts as well, a demand that was agreed to by New Delhi and accordingly these posts were included in the PMDP.
Subsequently, the state cabinet approved creation of 3000 supernumerary posts for the migrants while making amendments in J&K Migrants Special Drive Recruitment Rules notified vide SRO-412 of 2009 to extend benefits to Pandit families who hadn’t migrated from Kashmir.
The official said that the jobs were part of overall package that was meant to ensure return of the migrant families to the Valley.
“Providing employment to migrants was part of composite package to ensure return of the Pandit families. As per the package a family who opts for return are to be given temporary accommodation called transit accommodation and then provided with cash assistance for repairs/construction of their houses at their native places. When this process is completed then each such family has to be provided job under the package,” said the official.  
The central home ministry was also told that about 723 kanal land has been identified by the state government in seven different districts of Kashmir for construction of additional units of transit accommodation for migrant families.
“512 flats at VessuKulgam and 96 flats at SheikhporaBudgam are being constructed by JKPCC for employees appointed/to be appointed under the PM package at an estimated cost of Rs 175.83 crore…32 flats at SheikhporaBudgam will be completed this year and another 32 flats in January 2018 and remaining 32 flats will be completed in March 2018.”
At Vessu Kulgam, 32 flats will be completed by ending December, 2017 and 64 flats by March, 2018 and remaining flats will be completed after that, reads the review note prepared by state government.

Officially Stated
· 
· 900 Kashmiri prisoners lodged in jails
Dec 04: More than 900 Kashmiri prisoners are languishing in various jails within and outside Jammu and Kashmir and of these 42 are facing life sentence while 298 are serving detention under the Public Safety Act, the official data quoted by media revealed.
According to the data, 200 prisoners are lodged in central jail Kotbalwal Jammu, 90 in district jail Kathua, 10 in district jail Udhampur, five in Amphala jail Jammu, five in district jail Hiranagar Jammu, and six in district jail Rajouri.
	“Five inmates are serving detention in Reasi jail in Jammu and 10 in district jail Poonch,” the data reveals. 
In Kashmir, the official figures suggest that central jail Srinagar tops the list of prisoners at 300.
“There are 15 prisoners lodged in sub-jail Baramulla, 30 in district jail Kupwara, 15 in sub-jail Baramulla, and 18 in district jail Mattan, Anantnag.”
Besides, 147 people have been detained and are lodged in various police stations across the state.
The data reveals that at least 48 prisoners are lodged in New Delhi’s Tihar jail, which was in news recently over thrashing of 18 inmates including four Kashmiris. 
· 163 braid chopping incidents reported in Kashmir: Govt. 
Dec 07: Many as 163 cases of braid chopping were reported in Kashmir valley while 264 have been reported from Jammu division, the government informed the High Court.
The police report submitted to the court hearing a public interest litigation on braid chopping incidents in the valley, informed that three people were arrested in connection with braid chopping incidents in Kashmir.
The court later reserved its judgement in the case.
Among the arrested, one is a woman from Batmaloo, and two men are from district Ganderbal currently lodged in Police Station Batmaloo and Ganderbal, the report said.
Additional Advocate General BA Dar said the efforts of police force “has led to the decrease in the incidents.”
The division bench comprising of Justice Mohammad Yaqoob Mir and Justice Ali Mohammad Magrey remarked that investigation be carried out properly after receiving the report.
The report further said that the victims don’t want to come forward and “refused to record their statement before police but the investigation is going on. Till now no tangible evidence has been recovered.”
Forensic examination has revealed that hair has been chopped with some sharp edged object.
The report said that most of the involved have not been nabbed yet. Also rumours and hoax incidents were highlighted for which investigation is being conducted.
· No custodial killing, No disappearance in J&K since 2015: DGP
Dec 10: In the past three years, the police have not seen any custodial death, rape or disappearance in Jammu and Kashmir, the director general of police SP Vaid said on Sunday.
Speaking at a seminar organised by the state human rights commission at Srinagar to mark the world human rights day, Vaid said that the police force is “facing a tough situation in the state, but it is a big achievement for us that since 2015, no custodial killings, disappearances and rapes have happened here.”
· Govt sanctions Rs 5 lakh each to 76 civilians killed in 2016 unrest
Dec 16:  The government has sanctioned an exgratia relief of Rs 5 lakh each to the Next of Kin (NOKs) of 76 civilians killed by forces in the Valley during 2016 unrest triggered by killing of 21-year-old Hizbul Mujahideen commander Burhan Wani.
The government has informed the SHRC that it has accorded the sanction for exgratia relief to the NoKs of the civilians killed from 08-07-2016 till 02-11-2016.
“Sanction is hereby accorded to payment of exgratia relief of Rs five lakh purely as a humanitarian measure in favour of the families/NoKs of 76 civilians killed in law and order disturbances in Kashmir last year,” read the government order submitted to SHRC.
According to unofficial figures, at least 92 civilians and two policemen were killed and thousands of civilians injuries, mostly by pellets, in forces firing on protestors during the over five month long unrest in the Valley last year triggered by killing of Burhan Wani in an encounter with forces on July 8.
Earlier, in March this year, the government had informed SHRC that not a single probe into civilian killings during 2016 unrest has been completed yet.
Sources said SHRC had asked the government to file a report on the probe in civilian killings during the unrest.
They said the government has not filed any report yet.
When contacted, Divisional Commissioner Kashmir, Baseer Ahmad Khan told Rising Kashmir that he does not have details right now about the exgratia paid to the next of kins of those killed in unrest last year.
“I will be able to share the details tomorrow,” he said.
· 318 killed in JK this year: GoI
New Delhi, Dec 19:  As many as 203 militants, the highest in the last four years, were killed by forces in Jammu and Kashmir this year and the number of civilians killed in militancy-related violence in the period was also the highest, the Government of India (GoI) informed Parliament on Tuesday.
Union Minister of State for Home Hansraj Gangaram Ahir said in a written reply to the Lok Sabha 203 militants were killed in the state this year till December 10, as compared to 150 in calendar year 2016, 108 in 2015 and 110 in 2014.
Talking about the number of civilians killed in militancy- related violence in the state, the minister said while 37 of them were killed till December 10 this year, 15 were killed in calendar year 2016, 17 in 2015 and 28 in 2014.
Militancy-related incidents in the state till December 10 this year were also the highest at 335 as compared to 322 in calendar year 2016, 208 in 2015 and 222 in 2014, he said.
According to the data provided by the minister, while 75 security personnel were killed in Jammu and Kashmir till December 10 this year, 82 were killed in 2016, 39 in 2015 and 47 in 2014.
Replying to a question on the situation in Jammu and Kashmir, Ahir said necessary directions were issued from time to time after reviewing the security situation of the state.
"In order to prevent the activities of militants, numerous steps have been taken, including strengthening of the operational grid with an enhanced human intelligence and use of technical intelligence grid," he added.
· Govt forces use rubber/plastic bullets in Kashmir, GoI tells Parliament
Dec 19: The Government of India (GoI) told Parliament that government forces use rubber and plastic bullets in Jammu and Kashmir to disperse “violent unlawful assembly”.
In response to a question in Parliament, the GoI said that as per the Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) adopted by Jammu and Kashmir Police, other law-enforcing agencies also use “less lethal” plastic/rubber bullets for dispersal of unlawful assembly.
“The use of force should be guided by objectives of restoring peace, dispersal of violent unlawful assembly with use of such force as is required to minimise the casualty but without compromising safety for Law Enforcement Elements and peace loving citizens,” said the government spokesperson. “The hierarchy of usage of force inter-alia includes use of rubber bullet/ plastic bullets.”
Parliamentarian Dr P Venugopal had asked the GoI to state whether it is true that the government would introduce less lethal plastic bullets to be used against protesters in Jammu and Kashmir.
In another question, Venugopal asked the GoI what options had been explored to initiate a dialogue with stakeholders in Kashmir, including the “separatists”.
In its response, the government spokesperson said that the GoI has appointed Shri Dineshwar Sharma, former Director of Intelligence Bureau, to initiate and carry forward a dialogue with elected representatives, various organisations and concerned individuals in the State of Jammu and Kashmir.
“Considering the positive initial response from different sections of people in Jammu and Kashmir, it is expected that all stakeholders in the state who believe in peace would support the Government initiative and join the dialogue process,” the spokesman said.
· No plan to take away J&K’s special status, says Centre
Dec 20: The government informed Parliament on Wednesday that there was no proposal as of now for abolition of Articles 35A and 370 which give special status to Jammu and Kashmir.
The reply came in response to the question posed by Akali Dal MP Sukhdev Singh Dhindsa.
“No proposal regarding abolition of Article 35A and Article 370 in respect of Jammu and Kashmir is at present under the consideration of the government,” Minister of State for Home Hansraj Ahir said replying to a written question.
Abrogation of Article 370, that gives autonomous status to Jammu and Kashmir, continues to be a part of the core ideology of the ruling BJP, but the party maintains that it does not have enough numbers in Parliament to do away with it.
In case of Section 35A, a writ petition was filed in the Supreme Court by an NGO seeking its abrogation.
The PIL said the Jammu and Kashmir government, under the guise of Articles 35A and 370, was discriminating against non-residents who are debarred from buying properties, getting a government job or voting in the local elections.
Article 35A was added to the Constitution by a presidential order in 1954 and it empowers the State legislature to define the State’s “permanent residents” and their special rights and privileges.
· 108 militants sneaked into Kashmir; 70 killed at LoC: Official data
Dec 30: There was no let up in infiltration in 2017 as 108 militants sneaked into Kashmir this year through 350-km-long Line of Control (LoC).
Official records accessed by media from different security agencies reveal that militants this year sneaked in Kashmir mostly through Gurez, Keran and Uri routes of northern areas of Kashmir.
The records reveal that 108 militants infiltrated in Kashmir while as 70 were killed during infiltration foiling bids in different sectors along LoC in Kashmir. 
“As per the Army and Police assessment, 108 militants have managed to sneak into Kashmir. There might be little discrepancy with MAC figures and that will be looked into,” said a senior security forces official monitoring developments.
	The number of militants, according to data, who successfully crossed over into Kashmir in 2017 has raised over three fold. “In 2016 it was about four fold and this year there is slight decline,” the senior officer said adding that in 2016 as many as 119 militants had sneaked into Kashmir.
The numbers, according to the officer, reveal that the militants have been getting better at crossing over without getting trapped at LoC. “While the success percentage was around 20% in 2010 and 2011, it raised to 46% in 2012 and 35% in 2013,” maintains the data. “In 2015 there were only 121 attempts and 46 of the militants were shot and killed — a ‘kill ratio’ of 38.”
The data says that in comparison, only 9% of those who attempted to infiltrate in 2016 were killed. “In 2016, 32% of the 371 attempts were successful. Only 9% of those who attempted to cross over last year were killed. Around 1% apprehended, 58% gave up their attempts at infiltration and turned back,” it reveals.
“So far we have not calculated the percentage of this year,” said the senior security forces official adding that even if the LoC is buried deep under snow the infiltration never ceases.
The Army, however, maintained that infiltration from across the LoC into Kashmir was down to a “trickle” as compared to infiltration figures of earlier years. “Infiltration routes keep on changing from time to time and over the years some routes have become active while others have turned dormant,” said a senior army officer. 
“Almost all major infiltration attempts have taken place in the frontier districts of Kupwara, Bandipora and Baramulla.”



	Date 
	Armed Forces
	Militants
	Civilians

	Dec 01
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 02
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 03
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 04
	1
	3
	-

	Dec 05
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 06
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 07
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 08
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 09
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 10 
	-
	3
	1

	Dec 11
	1
	-
	2

	Dec 12
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 13
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 14
	1
	-
	-

	Dec 15
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 16
	-
	1
	-

	Dec 17
	-
	-
	1

	Dec 18
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 19
	-
	2
	1

	Dec 20
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 21
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 22
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 23
	4
	-
	-

	Dec 24
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 25
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 26
	-
	1
	-

	Dec 27
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 28
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 29
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 30
	-
	-
	-

	Dec 31
	6
	2
	-

	Total 
	13
	12
	5

	                                                           In Toto
	30 Killings 



Chronology
Dec 01: No incident of violence reported.
Dec 02: Unidentified gunmen fired at and injured a person Mukhtiyar Ahmad at Keegam village of Shopian district. The injured was shifted to hospital. While suspected militants targeted a police station in Baramula district, however, no damage was caused. 
Dec 03: Suspected militants hurled a grenade on Kral Gund police station in north Kashmir Handwara area but no damage was caused. 
Dec 04: Three LeT militants and an army trooper were killed and a soldier injured in an encounter which took place after the militants attacked an army convoy Qazigund area in South Kashmir. The slain militants were identified as Yawar Bashir of Hablish, Kulgam and two Pakistani nationals Furqan and Abu Maviya. A civilian sustained a bullet injury during protests that erupted after the encounter was over while another boy was injured with pellets in his eye. The injured were identified as Suhail Ahmad Khan, 23, son of Mohammad Yaqoob of Badragund, Kulgam and Owais of Vessu, Kulgam. In another incident, two policemen were injured in accidental firing in Kulgam district. A police official said that constables Fayaz Ahmad and Zahoor Abass were injured when the service rifle of a police constable went off accidentally inside the Kulgam police station. The injured policemen were shifted to the district hospital Kulgam, where doctors referred them to Srinagar hospital.
Dec 05: Cross LOC shelling between Indian and Pakistani armed force took place along LOC in Rajouri district. While intense clashes erupted after the funeral in Bhadragund area of Qazigund, where three militants were killed on December 4,
Dec 06: Bullets fired by government forces on protestors in Hajin town in north Kashmir’s Bandipora on wounded a 25-year-old youth in his legs while five others were injured by pellets.
Dec 07: A complete shutdown was observed in Hajin area against the army excesses on December 6 in the area. The shutdown call was given by the Traders’ Federation, Hajin. All shops remained closed while traffic was off the roads. The Traders’ Federation, Hajin, also took out a protest march and held a sit-in against the army’s vandalisation of Hajin areas.
Dec 08: Protests were reported from various parts of the valley post Friday prayers. While an Army soldier was injured when the Pakistan Army opened fire and shelled Indian posts along the Line of Control in Poonch and Rajouri districts of Jammu and Kashmir, an official said. 
Dec 09: Restrictions were imposed in Srinagar downtown in view of the imminent protests.
Dec 10: Three unidentified militants, police said possible Pakistani nationals, and a woman were killed in a gunfight in Handwara area of north Kashmir's Kupwara district, police said. An official said that a joint party of army, CRPF and SOG of Jammu and Kashmir police cordoned off Younsu village of Handwara after “specific” inputs about the presence of militants. A woman, identified as Misra Bano, was also killed during the gunfight. While a Junior Commissioned Officer (JCO) was injured when the Pakistani forces violated ceasefire by firing at Indian posts along the Line of Control (LoC) in the Rajouri district of Jammu and Kashmir, an Army official said.
Dec 11: Two private security guards at Jammu and Kashmir Bank were killed in a suspected militant attack in Shopian’s Kralcheck village. Unidentified gunmen attacked a Scorpio bank vehicle (JK01M-4631) at the village, leaving two guards of Perfect Placement –a private security firm-seriously injured. They were removed to District Hospital Pulwama, where doctors declared them dead. The deceased have been identified as Mushtaq Ahmad, 30, of Anantnag, and Tariq Ahmad, 25, of Tumlehal, Pulwama. While one of the two JK policemen injured in accidental firing in Kulgam district last week succumbed to his injuries at a hospital. 
Dec 12: No incident of violence reported. 
Dec 13: Clashes erupted in Rohmoo village of Pulwama as people tried to disrupt a CASO launched by armed forces. The CASO was conducted by the forces after receiving the inputs about militant presence.  
Dec 14: An Army soldier posted in Jammu and Kashmir committed suicide. The jawan Lance Naik Parvesh Kumar Mishra from Romeo Battery Company of 118 Medium Regiment committed suicide by using his INSAS rifle. He was posted near Challa village in RS Pura district of Jammu and Kashmir.
Dec 15: Authorities put strict restrictions in place to disallow pro-freedom programme scheduled to be held in south Kashmir’s Anantnag district on the call of pro-freedom leadership. In parts of Srinagar to choke post-Friday prayers protests armed forces laid a siege.  In Anantnag, mobile internet services remained suspended for the second consecutive day, while train services were also suspended on the Banihal-Srinagar stretch.
Dec 16: A badly maimed body of Pakistani militant was found by locals in Tral area of south Kashmir. The slain militant was identified as Umar Khattab of Pakistan associated with JEM. 
Dec17: A driver of a Tata Sumo vehicle was killed when fired at by army soldiers outside his home in Thandipora village in Kralpora area of district Kupwara on late December 16 night. The deceased was identified as Asif Iqbal Bhat, son of Mohammad Iqbal Bhat, was at home in Thandipora Kralpora. 
Dec 18: A gunfight broke out between militants and troops during Cordon and Search Operation (CASO) at Batmuran, Wanpora area of Shopian district in the evening.
Dec 19: A young woman was killed in what police described as “cross-fire” but people said were bullets fired by government forces at protestors near the encounter site in Shopian’s Batmaran-Wanpora village where two militants, one of them a local of the village, were killed during a 16-hour-long gun battle that began Dec 18 night. 
The slain militants were identified as Tanveer Ahmad Bhat aka Nouman Bhai, resident of Batmaran-Wanpora, and a Pakistani militant, Ali Bhai. The deceased woman was identified Beauty Jan. About three dozen civilians were injured in clashes with government forces near the encounter site. Medical Superintendent of Pulwama District Hospital, Abdul Rasheed Para, told media that “24 injured persons were brought to the hospital among whom 11 were referred to Srinagar hospitals. Among the referred persons, four had firearm injuries and seven had pellet injuries.” While a blast, followed by gunshots, was heard near District Police Lines (DPL) in Drusoo area of Pulwama district. Police sources said that militants had hurled a grenade towards the DPL, but police officials said they were yet to ascertain the nature of the blast.
Dec 20: Kashmir observed shut down to protest civilian killings at the hand of armed forces. To contain the protests authorities imposed restrictions at various places. 
Dec 21: Armed forces laid a CASO in Hajin area of Bandipora district in north Kashmir. 
Dec 22: Protests were held after Friday prayers at several places on the call of the joint resistance leadership (JRL) against the killing of civilians and indiscriminate use of pellets by government forces. The government had imposed restrictions in areas under seven police stations of Srinagar, including in Nowhatta where the main Jamia Masjid was locked and prayers disallowed for the third consecutive week.
Dec 23: Four army troopers including a Major were killed in cross LOC shelling in Rajouri sector of Jammu division.
Dec 24: Pakistani forces again targeted Indian forward posts and villages in Jammu and Kashmir’s Poonch district, a day after an army major and three soldiers were killed in firing from across the Line of Control (LoC) in Rajouri.
Dec 25: Brother of a slain militant Arif Malik was abducted and beaten by unknown gunmen accusing him of being armed forces informer in Latter area of Pulwama. His confession video was also realised.   	
Dec 26: A 47-year-old, divisional commander of the Jaish, Noor Mohammad Tantray, was killed in a gunfight with armed forces in Karnbal locality of Samboora, near Pampore area of Pulwama district.
Dec 27: Cross LOC shelling took place in Rajouri.
Dec 28: Cross LOC shelling took place between Pakistani troops and Indian armed forces twice in Poonch district of Jammu and Kashmir.
Dec 29: No incident of violence reported. 
Dec 30: No incident of violence reported.
Dec 31: In an encounter five CRPF personnel and two JeM militants were killed that triggered after militants attack a CRPF camp in Letpora area of Pulwama district. The slain militants were identified as Manzoor Ahmad Baba of Drubgam, Pulwama and Fardeen Ahmad Khanday of Tral. Three CRPF were also injured in the attack.  While an army soldier was killed in cross LOC shelling along Noushera sector of Rajouri district.  
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